
 
 

    North Bay Village 
 
 

     Administrative Offices 

     1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141  

      Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com  

                                          
O F F I C I A L    A G E N D A 

 
REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 

 
TREASURE ISLAND ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

7540 EAST TREASURE DRIVE 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

 
TUESDAY, APRIL 8, 2014 

 
7:30 P.M. 

 
NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN TO ALL INTERESTED PARTIES THAT IF ANY PERSON SHOULD DECIDE TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE AT THE 
FORTHCOMING MEETING OF THE \VILLAGE COMMISSION, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, HE OR SHE WILL NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE 
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE VILLAGE 
FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS 
NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW.   
 
TO REQUEST THIS MATERIAL IN ACCESSIBLE FORMAT, SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS, INFORMATION ON ACCESS FOR PERSON WITH 
DISABILITIES, AND/OR ANY ACCOMMODATION TO REVIEW ANY DOCUMENT OR PARTICIPATE IN ANY VILLAGE-SPONSORED PROCEEDING, 
PLEASE CONTACT  (305) 756-7171 FIVE DAYS IN ADVANCE TO INITIATE YOUR REQUEST.  TTY USERS MAY ALSO CALL 711 (FLORIDA RELAY 
SERVICE). 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
  
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
  
 ROLL CALL 
 
2. A.  PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS 
 
  1.  POLICE EMPLOYEES’ RECOGNITION 
  2. DISPATCH UNIT RECOGNITION 
  3. OSCAR FONSECA, FULL POWER ENTERPRISES, INC. 
 
 B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. MIAMI-DADE COUNTY ANIMAL SERVICES 
2. FY 2013 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
3. GFOA BUDGET AWARD PRESENTATION 

 
1 

 



 
 

4. NORTH BAY VILLAGE OPTIMIST CLUB 
 
 C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

 
3. GOOD & WELFARE 
 
4. BOARD REPORTS 
 
 A. CITIZENS BUDGET & OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 B. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD 
 C. PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 
5. PUBLIC SAFETY DISCUSSION 
 
6. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 
7. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
8. VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
9. FINANCE REPORT 
 
10.  CONSENT AGENDA: Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-

explanatory and are not expected to require discussion or review. Items 
will be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by any member of 
the Commission, that item must be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and will be considered separately. 

 
 A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 
 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN NORTH 
 BAY VILLAGE AND THE FLORIDA STATE LODGE, FRATERNAL 
 ORDER OF POLICE FOR THE TERM OF OCTOBER 1, 2012 
 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015; AUTHORIZING 
 APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS FROM THE UNASSIGNED FUND 
 BALANCE TO COVER EXPENSES ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
 AGREEMENT;  AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
 IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT; 
 AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXPEND 
 BUDGETED FUNDS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
 DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

 
2 

 



 
 

 
The proposed Resolution will set the terms and conditions of employment 
under the FOP bargaining unit retroactive from October 1, 2012 to 
September 30, 2015. 

 
B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER 
 TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH 
 MIAMI-DADE COUNTY TO UTILIZE THE COUNTY’S 700/800 
 MHZ REGIONAL RADIO SYSTEM FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT 
 VOICE COMMUNICATON; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE  MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON)  
 
  The proposed Resolution will approve the Memorandum of 

Understanding with the County outlining certain policies and standard 
for use of the emergency radio system. 

 
C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF 
$20,000 FROM THE UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE ACCOUNT 
TO THE GENERAL INSURANCE ACCOUNT TO PAY THE 
INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE TO THE FLORIDA LEAGUE OF 
CITIES FOR SETTLEMENT PURPOSES IN THE MATTER OF 
NAYDA ACROS; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The proposed Resolution calls for the payment of $20,000 to cover the 

cost of the Village’s insurance deductible in a claim brought by Nayda 
Acros as a result of an accident involving one of the Village police 
vehicles. 

 
D.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, SETTLING THE MATTER OF CODE ENFORCEMENT 
FINES IMPOSED AGAINST RACHEL DUGGER OF 7401 BEACH VIEW 
DRIVE, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING THE 
APPROPRIATE VILLAGE OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF THE SETTLEMENT; 
TO EXECUTE AND FILE ANY REQUIRED DOCUMENTS WITH THE 
CLERK OF COURT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The proposed Resolution will authorize a settlement amount of 
$50,000 to satisfy a Code Enforcement lien imposed against the 
property. 
 

 
3 

 



 
 

 
 
 
1.) Commission Action 

 
11. PLANNING & ZONING CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 No Items. 
  
12. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, CREATING A PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY 
 PROGRAM AND JOINING THE TOWN OF BAY HARBOR ISLANDS, 
 THE  TOWN OF SURFSIDE, AND THE VILLAGE OF BISCAYNE 
 PARK IN CREATING THE CLEAN ENERGY COASTAL CORRIDOR 
 PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 163.08, FLORIDA 
 STATUTES; ADOPTING  AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT PURSUANT 
 TO SECTION 163.01, FLORIDA STATUTES, RELATING TO THE 
 CORRIDOR; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING 
 FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER 
 JORGE GONZALEZ) 

 
The proposed Resolution will allow the Village to create a Property 
Assessed Clean Energy Program (PACE) and join the referenced 
municipalities in a program to finance energy efficient improvements. 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 

B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF 
 POLICE IMPACT FEES; MAKING APPROPRIATIONS IN THE FY 
 2015 BUDGET; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

  
The proposed Resolution will allow the spending of Police Impact 
Fees collected from developers for police purposes pursuant to 
Section 32.44 of the Village Code of Ordinances. 

 
1.) Commission Action 

 
 
 

 
4 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
13. PUBLIC HEARINGS INCLUDING ORDINANCES FOR SECOND 
 READING: 
 

A. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, SETTING THE QUALIFYING DATES FOR 
 THE NOVEMBER 4, 2014 GENERAL ELECTION AS PROVIDED 
 FOR UNDER CHAPTER 100, SECTION 100.3605(2) OF THE 
 FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS FOR THE 
 VILLAGE CLERK; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER, 
 PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, PROVIDING FOR 
 CONFLICTING  ORDINANCES OR RESOLUTIONS; AND AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE.  (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
 FRANK K. ROLLASON) – FINAL READING 

 
 The proposed Ordinance will change the General Election qualifying 
 dates to occur earlier (7/29/14-8/27/14) at the request of the Miami-
 Dade Elections Department to assist them in meeting statutory 
 requirements to mail the overseas absentee ballots 45 days prior 
 to the election. 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 

 B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY 1755 NBV 
 LLC  FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 
 152.105(C)(9), 152.031(B)(1) AND 152.031(C)(4) OF THE NORTH 
 BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR DEVELOPMENT 
 OF A 132 UNIT, 25 STORY CONDOMINIUM HOTEL STRUCTURE 
 WITH A PARKING GARAGE AT 1755 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, 
 NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS; 
 PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR 
 CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR 
 VIOLATION OF CONDITIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 

 
5 

 



 
 
 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
 C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY 1755 NBV LLC FOR A 
 VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.097 OF THE NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
 DEVELOPMENT OF A 132 UNIT, 25  STORY CONDOMINUM HOTEL 
 STRUCTURE AT 1755 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, TO ALLOW A 20 FOOT SIDE-YARD SETBACK 
 WHERE 120 FEET IS REQUIRED BY SECTION 152.032(C)(2)(C); 
 PROVIDING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
 REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
 APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
        1.) Commission Action 
 
D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY 1755 NBV 
LLC FOR A SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 152.098 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO ALLOW UP TO TWENTY PERCENT OF THE 
DEVELOPMENT’S REQUIRED PARKING SPACES TO BE 
DESIGNED SPECIFICALLY FOR COMPACT VEHICLES; 
PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATION OF CONDITIONS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
        1.) Commission Action 
 

 E.  AN ORDINANCE OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 152 OF T H E  N O R T H  B A Y  
V I L L A G E  C O D E  O F  ORDINANCES ENTITLED 
"ZONING" BY AMENDING SECTION 152.003, DEFINITIONS BY 
MODIFYING THE DEFINITIONS OF "DWELLING, HOTEL 
ROOM", "DWELLING, HOTEL SUITE" AND BY ADDINIG A 
NEW  DEFINITION FOR "KITCHEN FACILITIES"; PROVIDING 
FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (FINAL 
READING)  

 

 
6 

 



 
 

 The proposed Ordinance wil l  address  the request  in I tem 13B 
 to change the def ini t ion of  hotel  room and providing a new 
 def ini t ion for ki tchen faci l i t ies .  

 
 1 . )  Commiss ion Act ion  
 
F .  AN ORDINANCE OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 152 OF T H E  N O R T H  B A Y  
V I L L A G E  C O D E   O F ORDINANCES ENTITLED “ZONING” 
BY CHANGING  THE ZONING DESIGNATION ON THE 
OFFICIAL  ZONING MAP FROM CG TO CL FOR THE 
PROPERTY SHOWN ON MAP 1 (1755 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY) 
AND  LEGALLY  DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A (ZONING MAP); 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (FINAL 
READING)  

 
The proposed Ordinance wil l  address  the request  in I tem 13B 

 to change the CG zoning designat ion to  CL for the property 
 located at  1755 Kennedy Causeway.  

 
        1.) Commission Action 
 

 G. AN APPLICATION BY 7914 BUILDING, LLC CONCERNING 
 PROPERTY  LOCATED AT 7914, 7916 AND 7918 WEST DRIVE, TRACT 
 C OF HARBOR ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA FOR 
 THE FOLLOWING:  (FIRST PUBLIC HEARING) 

 
 1. SITE PLAN APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.105(C)(9) 

 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR 
 DEVELOPMENT OF A 52 UNIT, 15 STORY MULTI- FAMILY 
 CONDOMINIUM STRUCTURE IN THE RM-70 (HIGH 
 DENSITY MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) ZONING 
 DISTRICT. 

 
 2. BONUS DENSITY REVIEW PURSUANT TO SECTION 

 152.029(C)(8)(H) OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF 
 ORDINANCES. 

             
  3. A SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 

 152.042(E) AND 152.098 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE 
 OF  ORDINANCES TO ALLOW UP TO TWENTY (20) PERCENT 
 OF THE DEVELOPMENT'S REQUIRED PARKING SPACES TO 
 BE DESIGNED SPECIFICALLY FOR COMPACT VEHICLES. 

 

 
7 

 



 
 

  1.) Commission Action 
 

H. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY WILLIAM C. WEBB, JR. FOR 
 A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.097 OF THE NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
 REDEVELOPMENT OF A SINGLE-FAMILY STRUCTURE AT 1357 BAY 
 TERRACE TO PERMIT A BUILDING HEIGHT OF 29.5 FEET ABOVE 
 FEMA BASE FLOOD ELEVATION, WHERE 25 FEET IS ALLOWED; 
 PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
 REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
 APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 

I. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY HOLGER PIENING AND 
 ANDREA FRANKE FOR A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 
 152.0971 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 
 PERMIT THE SWIMMING POOL EQUIPMENT TO ENCROACH 4 
 FEET INTO THE REQUIRED 7.5 FOOT SIDE INTERIOR SETBACK AT 
 1700 SOUTH TREASURE DRIVE; PROVIDING FINDINGS; 
 PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR 
 CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR 
 VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
           1.) Commission Action 

 
J. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILALGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY HOLGER PIENING AND 
 ANDREA FRANKE FOR A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 
 152.097 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 
 PERMIT A 3.5 FOOT SIDE-YARD INTERIOR SETBACK FOR THE 
 CONSTRUCTION OF STEPS AND LANDING LEADING FROM THE 
 SWIMMING POOL DECK AT 1700 SOUTH TREASURE DRIVE; 
 PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
 REQUEST; PROVIDING  FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
 APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
 AN EFFECTIVE  DATE. 

 
            1.) Commission Action 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
K. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY KAUKUTA SAINT FOR A 
 VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.097 OF THE NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW A GENERATOR TO 
 ENCROACH FOUR FEET INTO THE REQUIRED TEN-FOOT SIDE-
 YARD SETBACK AT 7441 CENTER BAY DRIVE; PROVIDING 
 FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; 
 PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; 
 PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 1.) Commission Action 
 
L. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY KAUKUTA SAINT FOR A 
VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.0971 OF THE NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW TWO CARPORTS TO 
ENCROACH TWENTY FEET INTO THE FRONT YARD SETBACK 
ALLOWING A ZERO FRONT-YARD SETBACK AT 7441 CENTER BAY 
DRIVE; PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 1.) Commission Action 
 
M. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION OF A DOCK AT 1460 
 SOUTH TREASURE DRIVE; PROVIDING FINDINGS; PROVIDING 
 FOR  GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; 
 PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND 
 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

    
            1.)     Commission Action 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
9 

 



 
 

 
 

14. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY BAYVIEW CONDOMINIUM 
 ASSOCIATION FOR A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.0971 
 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW 
 NATURAL GAS GENERATOR TO BE SETBACK 8.5 FEET FROM THE 
 SIDE PROPERTY LINE, WHERE A SETBACK OF 15 FEET IS 
 REQUIRED; PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING 
 THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
 APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (CONTINUED FROM DECEMBER 10, 2013) 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
15. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. SETTING DATE FOR FY 2015 BUDGET WORKSHOP 
 
  1.) Commission Action 
 

B. APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
16. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
 A. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING - MARCH 11, 2014 
 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
10 

 



 
 

 
 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE 
MEETING NOTICE 

 
              
THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2014  6:00 P.M. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD  
       MEETING 

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 
       1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, 3RD FLOOR 
  
WEDNEDAY, APRIL 30, 2014  6:00 P.M. CITIZENS BUDGET & OVERSIGHT BOARD 
       MEETING 
       VILLAGE ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 
       1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, 3RD FLOOR 
 
Any meeting may be opened and continued and, under such circumstances, additional legal notice 
would not be provided.  Any person may contact the Village Clerk at (305) 756-7171 for 
information.  In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons needing 
special accommodation to participate in this proceeding or to review any documents relative 
thereto should contact the Village for assistance at (305) 756-7171 no later than four (4) days prior 
to the proceedings. TTY users may also call 711 (Florida Relay Service). 
 
EVENT: 
SUNDAY, APRIL 13, 2014  11:00 A.M.-  FARMERS’ MARKET 
SUNDAY, APRIL 20, 2014  3:00 P.M. 1755 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY (WEST OF 
SUNDAY, APRIL, 27, 2014    BEST WESTERN) 
       NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA    
 
 
 
 

 
11 

 



DATE: 

TO: 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

RECOMMENDATION MEMORANDUM 

March 13, 2014 

Mayor Connie Leon Kreps 
Vice-Mayor Eddie Lim 
Commissioner Dr. Richard Chervony 
Commissioner Jorge Gonzalez 
Commissioner Wendy Duvall 

RECOMMENDED BY STAFF/COMISSION ER: 
Frank Rollason, Village Manager 

PRESENTED BY STAFF: 
Robert Daniels, Police Chief V 

SUBJECT: April 2014 Village Commission Meeting 
Request to Honor Communications Dispatch Personnel 

RECOMMENDATION: 

We recommend that the Village Commission declare the week of April l 3- 19, 
2014 as Public Safety Tclecommunicators Week in North Bay Village. We also 
ask that all North Bay Village Staff members/employees, Citizens and Village 
Offi cials take time during this week to reach out and honor our Police 
Communications Dispatch Center Personnel. 

BACKGROUND: 

National Tclccommunicators Week was introduced by The Association of Public
Safety Communications Officials (APCO) International as a way of thanking all 
telecommunications personnel in the public safety community for their continued 
efforts to preserve the public s sa fety. Although APCO International does all it 
can to honor our calltakers and dispatchers th roughout the year, National Public 
Safety Telecommunications Week on April 13- 19, 20 14 has been set aside to 
promote awareness of their hard work and dedication, which provide a vital link to 
the public sa fe ty services which we rely on every day. 

1841 GALLEON STREET, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 

PHONE #305-758-2626 FAX #305-866-7513 

Page 1



We would like to make National Public Safety Telecommunications Week 20 14 a 
memorable one for our Dispatchers. We encourage North Bay Village to 
recognize and celebrate our Dispatch E mployees. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There wi ll be no impact to the General Fund. 

PERSONNEL IMPACT: 

Communications Dispatch Center Personne l 

CONTACT: 

Robert J. Daniels, Chief of Po lice 

2 

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



North Bay Village 
 
 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141  
Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com  

                                           
 

 
VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 

To 
The Mayor and Members of the Village Commission 

 
APRIL 8, 2014 

 
Treasure Island Elementary School 

7540 East Treasure Drive 
North Bay Village, FL 3341 

 
 

1. Garbage Dumpsters: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Paul Vogel Parks Seawall 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Water Leaks on Residential Streets 
 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Memorandum 
 

To: North Bay Village Commission 

From: James G. LaRue, AICP 

Date: April 1, 2014 

Subject: 1755 Kennedy Causeway, 2nd Hearing 

 

The hotel project proposed for 1755 Kennedy Causeway was heard by the Planning and Zoning 

Board over the course of two meetings; January 30, 2014 and February 18, 2014. All items 

were then presented for the Village Commission on March 11, 2014. Both bodies recommended 

approval of all applications presented for the project. The voting record and staff’s 

recommendations for those items are as follows: 

 

• 

Request for Rezoning from CG District to CL District 

• 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval by a 4-0 vote. 

The Commission recommended approval of this ordinance at its 1st reading by a 

• 

5-0 vote. 

 

Staff recommends approval of this request. 

• 

Request for Text Amendment to the North Bay Village Land Development Regulations 

• 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval with staff’s recommended 

additional code revisions by a 3-1 vote. 

The Commission recommended approval of this ordinance at its 1st

• 

 reading by a 5-0 vote. 

1. Adoption of applicant requested North Bay Village Land Development Code change 

to revise the definitions of “Dwelling, hotel room” and Dwelling, hotel suite” as 

follows: 

Staff recommends approval of this request, with several additions, as follows: 

a. Dwelling, hotel room. A residential unit, which is used on a temporary basis by 

transient guests and does not contain kitchen facilities

b. Dwelling hotel suite. A group of hotel rooms connected together

. 

 containing no 

kitchen facilities

2. Adoption of the staff recommended North Bay Village Land Development Code 

change to revise the definition of “Kitchen facilities” as shown in the staff 

recommendations section below. 

. 

Page 180



3. For this project, operation of the hotel shall adhere to the Florida Statute definition of 

public lodging establishment, which includes hotels, as shown in Florida Statute 

Section 509.013(4)(a) as follows: 

“any unit, group of units, dwelling, building, or group of buildings within a single 

complex of buildings, which is rented to guests more than three times in a 

calendar year for periods of less than 30 days or one (1) calendar month, 

whichever is less, or which is advertised or held out to the public as a place 

regularly rented to guests.” 

With the understanding that hotel occupancy be for no more than 90 non-

consecutive days with a 30 day interval between. 

4. For this project, no kitchen facilities shall be allowed in units that are less than 750 

square feet in size. 

5. The density for this entire project shall be calculated on hotel occupancy, 132 units at 

99 units per acre. 
 

• 

Request for a Variance to the Side Yard Setback Requirements 

• 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval by a 3-2 vote. 

• 

The Village Commission recommended approval by a 4-1 vote. 

 

Staff recommends denial of this request. 

• 

Request for a Review under the Bayview Overlay Standards 

• 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval by a 5-0 vote. 

• 

The Village Commission recommended approval by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Staff recommends approval of this request. 

• 

Special Exception Request for Use of Compact Parking Spaces 

• 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval by a 5-0 vote. 

• 

The Village Commission recommended approval by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

• 

Site Plan & Building Height Bonus Review 

• 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval by a 4-1 vote, based on staff’s 

recommended conditions. 

The Village Commission recommended approval by a 5-0 vote, based on staff’s 

recommended conditions. 

Page 181



• 

1. 

Staff recommends approval of this request, conditional upon the following items being met 

prior to issuance of a building permit: 

2. 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the public access easement and the 
waterfront boardwalk easement must be dedicated and recorded. Applicant shall 
agree, in writing, that boardwalks shall be open to the public from sun-up until either 
10:00 pm or at least until any businesses adjacent to the boardwalk remains open to 
the public, whichever is later; and boardwalk lighting shall remain on until boardwalk 
is closed to the public. 

3. 

Proof of site plan approval from the Miami-Dade Shoreline Review Committee must 
be provided. 

4. 

School Board Concurrency requirements must be met, as determined by School 
Board Staff. 

5. 

An irrigation plan which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A requirements must be 
submitted. 

6. 

Bonus height fees must be paid, as required under Section 152.029(C)8A-8F. 

7. 

Any applicable impact fees must be paid. 

8. 

Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 
new development application shall be accepted and no building permit or certificate 
of occupancy shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery 
deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees 
related to any previous development proposal applications on the property), have 
been paid in full. 

9. 

Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 
prior to commencement of construction. 

10. 

Approval of this site plan does not in any way create a right on the part of the 
applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create 
liability on the part of the Village for approval if the applicant fails to obtain requisite 
approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes 
action that results in a violation of federal or state law. 

 

All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 
construction. 

For further discussion of these issues, please see staff reports presented at the first public 

hearing on March 11, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

 

CC: Frank Rollason, Village Manager 

Yvonne Hamilton, Village Clerk 

Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



ORDINANCE NO. 2014- __ 

AN ORDINANC E OF NORTH BAY VILLAG E, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 152 OF TH E 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES ENTITLED "ZONING" BY AMENDING 
SECTION 152.003, DEFINITIONS BY MODIFYING 
THE DEFINITIONS OF "DWELLING, HOTEL 
ROOM", "DWELLING, HOTEL SUITE" AND BY 
ADDINIG A NEW DEFINITION FOR "KITCHEN 
FACILITIES"; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABJLITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDI NG AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the municipality of North Bay Village (the "Village") seeks to 
encourage flexibility and c larification for properties used as hotels. and 

WHEREAS, the Village recognizes that hotel uses can typically include kitchens 
or kitchenettes, and. 

WHEREAS, the Village recognizes the need to define what equipment shall be 
included in the definition of kitchen facilities, and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed these zoning code 
modifications at a duly advertised public hearing and recommended approval of the 
zoning code definition changes, and 

WHEREAS, the Village Commission hereby finds and declares that adoption of this 
Ordinance is necessary, appropriate, and advances the public interest. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE MAYOR AND VILLAGE 
COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLA CE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section l. Recitals Adopted. Each of the above stated recita ls is true and 
correct and incorporated herein by this reference. 

Page I of 3 

Page 308



Section 2. Section 152.003, Definitions, of the Code of Ordinances for North 
Bay Village is hereby amended by modifying the definitions of "Dwelling, hotel 
room" and "Dwelling, hotel suite" to read as follows: 

(5) Dwelling, hotel room. A residential unit, which is used on a temporary 
basis by transient guests and does not contain kitchen facilities. 

(6) Dwelling, hotel suite. A group of hotel rooms connected together 
containing no kitchen facilities. 

Section 3. Section 152.003, Definitions, of the Code of Ordinances for North 
Bay Village is hereby amended by adding new definition for "Kitchen facilities" to 
read as follows : 

Kitchen facilities. Any form of mechanical refrigeration or cooking equipment 
except a portable mini-refrigerator, portable microwave oven and coffee -maker. 

Section 4. Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, resolutions or parts 
of resolutions in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
non-severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 
any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall render this 
Ordinance void in its entirety. 

Section 6. Inclusion in the Code. It is the intention of the Village 
Commission, and it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become 
and be made a part of the Code of North Bay Village; that the sections of this Ordinance 
may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intentions; and that the word 
"Ordinance" shall be changed to "Section" or other appropriate word. 

Section 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon 
adoption on second reading. 

Page 2of3 

Page 309



A motion to approve the foregoing Ordinance on first reading on March 11 , 20 14 was offered 
by Commissioner Richard Chervony, seconded by Commissioner Wendy Duvall. 

The Votes were as follows: 

Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps Yes 
Vice Mayor Eddie Lim Yes 
Commissioner Richard Chervony Yes 
Commissioner Wendy Duvall Yes 
Commissioner Jorge Gonzalez Yes 

A motion to approve the foregoing Ordinance on final reading was offered by ___ _ 
seconded by _____ ___ _ 

FINAL VOTES AT ADOPTION: 

Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 
Vice Mayor Eddie Lim 
Commissioner Richard Chervony 
Commissioner Wendy Duvall 
Commissioner Jorge Gonzalez 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED _ day of _____ 2014. 

ATTEST: 

Yvonne P. Hamilton, Village Clerk, CMC 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE USE OF 
NORTII BAY VILLAGE ONLY: 

Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 
Village Attorney 

Page 3of3 

Connie Leon-Kreps 
Mayor 

Page 310



ORDINANCE NO. 2014- __ 

AN ORDINANC E OF NORTH BAY VILLAG E, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 152 OF TH E 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES ENTITLED "ZONING" BY AMENDING 
SECTION 152.003, DEFINITIONS BY MODIFYING 
THE DEFINITIONS OF "DWELLING, HOTEL 
ROOM", "DWELLING, HOTEL SUITE" AND BY 
ADDINIG A NEW DEFINITION FOR "KITCHEN 
FACILITIES"; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABJLITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDI NG AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the municipality of North Bay Village (the "Village") seeks to 
encourage flexibility and c larification for properties used as hotels. and 

WHEREAS, the Village recognizes that hotel uses can typically include kitchens 
or kitchenettes, and. 

WHEREAS, the Village recognizes the need to define what equipment shall be 
included in the definition of kitchen facilities, and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed these zoning code 
modifications at a duly advertised public hearing and recommended approval of the 
zoning code definition changes, and 

WHEREAS, the Village Commission hereby finds and declares that adoption of this 
Ordinance is necessary, appropriate, and advances the public interest. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE MAYOR AND VILLAGE 
COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLA CE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section l. Recitals Adopted. Each of the above stated recita ls is true and 
correct and incorporated herein by this reference. 

Page I of 3 

Page 311



Section 2. Section 152.003, Definitions, of the Code of Ordinances for North 
Bay Village is hereby amended by modifying the definitions of "Dwelling, hotel 
room" and "Dwelling, hotel suite" to read as follows: 

(5) Dwelling, hotel room. A residential unit, which is used on a temporary 
basis by transient guests and does not contain kitchen facilities. 

(6) Dwelling, hotel suite. A group of hotel rooms connected together 
containing no kitchen facilities. 

Section 3. Section 152.003, Definitions, of the Code of Ordinances for North 
Bay Village is hereby amended by adding new definition for "Kitchen facilities" to 
read as follows : 

Kitchen facilities. Any form of mechanical refrigeration or cooking equipment 
except a portable mini-refrigerator, portable microwave oven and coffee -maker. 

Section 4. Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, resolutions or parts 
of resolutions in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
non-severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 
any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall render this 
Ordinance void in its entirety. 

Section 6. Inclusion in the Code. It is the intention of the Village 
Commission, and it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become 
and be made a part of the Code of North Bay Village; that the sections of this Ordinance 
may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intentions; and that the word 
"Ordinance" shall be changed to "Section" or other appropriate word. 

Section 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon 
adoption on second reading. 

Page 2of3 

Page 312



A motion to approve the foregoing Ordinance on first reading on March 11 , 20 14 was offered 
by Commissioner Richard Chervony, seconded by Commissioner Wendy Duvall. 

The Votes were as follows: 

Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps Yes 
Vice Mayor Eddie Lim Yes 
Commissioner Richard Chervony Yes 
Commissioner Wendy Duvall Yes 
Commissioner Jorge Gonzalez Yes 

A motion to approve the foregoing Ordinance on final reading was offered by ___ _ 
seconded by _____ ___ _ 

FINAL VOTES AT ADOPTION: 

Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 
Vice Mayor Eddie Lim 
Commissioner Richard Chervony 
Commissioner Wendy Duvall 
Commissioner Jorge Gonzalez 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED _ day of _____ 2014. 

ATTEST: 

Yvonne P. Hamilton, Village Clerk, CMC 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE USE OF 
NORTII BAY VILLAGE ONLY: 

Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 
Village Attorney 

Page 3of3 

Connie Leon-Kreps 
Mayor 

Page 313



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report   

Site Plan  
 
 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village,  
Commission 

Applicant:    7914 Building LLC 
Site Address:  7914, 7916, and 7918 West Drive 
Request:   Density Bonus Review and  

Site Plan Approval for 
Multi-family residential building 
(condominium) 

Page 314



General Information 

 
Owner/Applicant: 

7914 Building LLC 
Fred Knoll 

Applicant Address: 11098 Biscayne Blvd, Suite 203 
Miami, FL  33161 

Site Address: 7914, 7916, and 7918 West Drive 
Contact Person: Adam Henry 
Applicant 
Phone Number: 904-710-1945 

E-mail Address fred_knoll@mfkgrp.com 
 
 

 Existing 

Future Land Use  High Density Multi-family Residential 
Zoning District RM-70 
Use of Property Vacant 
Acreage 33,600 sq ft 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

 
 
 
 
 

Request 

The applicant is requesting: 
 
1. Density bonus review in conjunction with site plan approval pursuant to Section 

152.029(C)(8)(H) of the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances.  
 

2. Site plan approval pursuant to Section 152.105(C)(9) of the North Bay Village Code of 
Ordinances for development of a 52 unit, 15 story multi-family condominium structure in the 
RM-70 (high density multiple-family residential) Zoning District. 

 
  

Page 315



General Description 

The site plan request for this development is for a 52 unit, 15 story, multi-family 
residential building (condominium). Previously, on this property there was an original 
2001 approved site plan which was modified in 2007. The 2007 site plan shows a total 
of 48 units with 13 one-bedroom units at 2,100 square feet, 11 two-bedroom units at 
3,130 square feet, and 24 three-bedroom units at 3,175 square feet. Since the current 
2014 site plan request is for a slight increase in the number of dwelling units and a 
different mixture of unit types it is being heard as a new site plan approval. 

Density Bonus Analysis 

The applicant is requesting a density bonus review under Section 152.029(C)(8)(H) of 
the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances to allow 46 two bedroom units and 6 three 
bedroom units for this property which, normally under the Zoning Density standards of 
Chapter 152, would be limited to 48 two bedroom dwelling units and 1 three bedroom 
dwelling unit. 
 
Under the section below there are a substantial number of dwelling units available to 
be used under this density bonus program and the Village records do not indicate any 
utilized in past development approvals. Assuming the density bonus program is still 
viable, the request for the density bonus for 4 (3 bedroom units) does qualify for 
approval. It should also be noted that the overall density of 70 dwelling units an acre is 
still being met as long as the total number of units does not exceed 53. 
 

§ 152.029 RM-70 High Density Multiple-Family Residential District. 

(C) Site development standards.  

(8) Bonus. The following maximum building height bonuses are permitted in the 
RM-70 District when any of the design bonus alternatives listed in 8(A) 
through 8(H) are incorporated into proposed project and the incorporated 
alternatives are subsequently approved by the Village Commission upon 
recommendation of the Planning & Zoning Board. Bonus approval shall be 
done at the time of Site Plan Review as required by 152.105(C)(9). Each 
bonus alternative may be claimed once for a development and multiple 
awards for the same bonus feature shall not be permitted.  

 The Village Commission may grant bonuses subsequent to a public hearing 
when it is determined by the Commission that the proposed bonus amenities 
are substantive in nature, contribute to an overall project design which takes 
into account the public's critical interests in new development and where the 
proposed plan is otherwise in substantial conformity with the Village's 
Comprehensive Plan.  

  

Page 316



(H) Density bonus. Each parcel shall have the ability to purchase additional 
buildable units from North Bay Village for a price of $40,000.00 per unit. 
These units shall be derived from land currently owned by the Village, which 
will not be developed into residential buildings in the future. The money from 
these units shall be utilized for future Village parks and for the purchase of 
land for additional open green space. These units are to come from the 
development rights of Village Hall as well as the public works property on 
Treasure Island. The total buildable units are: 129 Efficiencies; 129 1-
Bedroom Units; 117 2-Bedroom Units; 106 3-Bedroom Units. Monies due from 
development under the bonus participation program shall be paid to North Bay 
Village within 90 days of site plan approval by the Village Commission. 
Thereafter, the appropriate number of units will be deemed to the property. 
{This fee shall be set towards a Village Park Fund}.  

 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan 

The multifamily residential use is consistent with the description of the Residential 
Future Land Use category under Policy 2.1.1a of the Future Land Use Element. 
 

Adjacent Land Use Map Classifications and Zoning District 

 

North 

Future Land Use  High Density Multi-Family 
Residential 

Zoning District RM-70 

Existing Land Use Park 
   

East 

Future Land Use  High Density Multi-Family 
Residential 

Zoning District RM-70 

Existing Land Use Condominiums & 
Commercial Parking Lot 

   

South 

Future Land Use  High Density Multi-Family 
Residential 

Zoning District RM-70 

Existing Land Use Condominium 
   

West 

Future Land Use  Water 
Zoning District Water 

Existing Land Use Biscayne Bay 
 

  

Page 317



Adequacy of Public Facilities 

Applicant has submitted capacity analysis for traffic, sewer and water demonstrating 
sufficient capacity for the proposed development. 
 
Water and Sewer utilities will be provided by Miami-Dade County M-DC (DERM). This 
project will be required to meet Sewer Concurrency requirements as prescribed by the 
Public Works Director of North Bay Village. 
 
Staff has reviewed the Traffic Study prepared for this project by KBP Consulting Inc., 
and offers the following comments: 

 
1. The Study uses ITE code 232, High Rise Residential Condominium for AM 

Peak Hour and PM Peak Hour trip generation. 

2. KBP Consulting has employed the available peak hour capacity for two count 
station locations as provided by Miami-Dade County MPO and the FDOT, 
January, 2014.   
The count location at Kennedy Causeway, East of N. Bayshore Drive to US1 
has an available peak hour capacity of 968 trips. 
The count location at Kennedy Causeway, East of Treasure Drive between N. 
Bayshore Drive and Bay Drive has an available peak hour capacity of 2,832 
trips. 

3. The proposed project will generate a net increase of 44 trips during the AM 
peak hour and 33 vehicle trips during the PM peak hour.  

 

CONCLUSION 

After reviewing the materials, it is apparent that the proposed project involving 52 
dwelling units will not generate traffic levels that would result in traffic on Kennedy 
Causeway to exceed the available capacity during either the AM or PM Peak Hours. 
The applicant should also substantiate that the traffic LOS on West Drive will not 
exceed available capacity during the AM or PM peak traffic hours. Traffic consultants 
for the applicant will be presenting an analysis of local traffic impact on West Drive 
and for the intersection of West Drive and Kennedy Causeway at the April 8th 
Commission meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 318



Summary Analysis of Aggregate Traffic Impact on Kennedy Causeway 
 

 
Background 

The condo-hotel at 1755 Kennedy Causeway is proposed to comprise 132 hotel units of varying size, a 2,883 square 
foot quality restaurant and 2,354 square feet of specialty retail space. The Isle of Dreams mixed-use project is 
located at 1415 Kennedy Causeway and proposed to contain 237 unit high-rise residential structure with a 7,360 
square foot restaurant and 2,540 square feet of retail.  The Indigo project is a 53-unit high-rise condominium located 
at 7914 -- 7918 West Drive. 

Kennedy Causeway in North Bay Village is a six-lane, divided, State Road on which the vehicular capacity at LOS 
D is 4,500 vehicle trips.   

Data and Analysis 

According to traffic counts taken by Richard Garcia & Associates as provided in the Traffic Impact Statement for 
the Condo-hotel project the AM and PM Peak Hour traffic on Kennedy Causeway about 200 ft. east of E Treasure 
are 2,935 and 2,735 respectively.  The following table shows the aggregate effect of the traffic generation of the 
three developments. 
 

Project Peak-Hour Trips 
AM PM 

Condo-hotel, 1755 Kennedy Cswy.   92 106 
Isle of Dreams, 1415 Kennedy Cswy. 160 220 
Indigo, 927914 -- 7918 West Drive   44   33 
Total 296 359 
   
Current traffic  2,843 2,629 
Total with new developments 3,139 2,988 
Capacity at LOS D 4,500 4,500 
Remaining Capacity  1,361 1,512 

 

The Traffic Study prepared by KPB Consulting, Inc. for the Indigo project also provides insight from a more 
regional perspective.  The KPB analysis cites Miami-Dade County MPO and FDOT, January 2014 as the source for 
the available peak hour capacity on NE 79th Street between North Bayshore Drive and U.S. 1 on the mainland.  
Based on existing traffic volumes and peak hour trips associated with approved (but not built) developments, there is 
a remaining capacity of 968 trips along that roadway segment.  Adding in the 359 trips estimated for the three 
developments above, the remaining capacity for peak- hour trips between N. Bayshore Dr. and U.S. 1 will amount to 
609 (968-359) 

 

Conclusion 

Analysis of the combined traffic generation impact of the above developments upon Kennedy Causeway indicates 
that the additional traffic generated by these developments will not be sufficient to raise peak hour traffic level 
beyond adopted level of service standards. 
  

Page 319



Comparison of Submitted Site Plan With Land Development Regulations 

 
Section Regulation Required Provided 

 

North Bay Village LDC 

152.029(B) Uses permitted Multifamily residential 
dwellings In compliance 

152.029(C)(1) Minimum lot area 27,000 sq ft 33,600 sq ft 
(0.77 acres) 

152.029(C)(1) Minimum frontage 75 ft 240 ft 

152.029(C)(2) Minimum front 
setback 25 ft 25 ft 

152.029(C)(2) Minimum side 
setback 

15 ft on one side. 
 
20% of lot width on the 
other side 
 
Combination of both 
side setbacks to be at 
least 60 ft 
 

15 ft on north side 

20% of 240 = 48 

 
48 ft on south side 
 
Combination of both 
side setbacks equal 
to 63 ft 

152.029(C)(2) Minimum rear setback 25 ft 25 ft 

152.029(C)(3) Required lot area per 
dwelling unit 

Unit type Lot 
area/unit 

Efficiency 620 
1-br 620 
2-br 685 
3-br 750 

 
46 x 685 = 31,510 
6 x 750 = 4,500 
31,510 + 4,500 = 
36, 010 sq ft of 
required lot area  

36,010>33,600 
 
Applicant is paying 
density bonus fees. 
See below for bonus 
density provision. 

Comprehensive Plan 
Future Land Use 
Policy 2.1.1a 

Maximum density 70 dwelling units per 
acre 

67.4 dwelling units 
per acre 

152.029(C)(4) Maximum building 
height 

150 ft or 15 stories, 
whichever is less 150 ft 

152.029(C)(4) Maximum parking 
levels 4 stories 

Ground level parking 
and4 stories of 
parking garage.  

152.029(C)(5) Minimum pervious 
area 

20% of total parcel 
 11,017 sq ft 20% of 33,600 = 6,720 
sq ft 

Page 320



Section Regulation Required Provided 

152.029(C)(6) Minimum dwelling unit 
floor area 

Unit type Floor 
area 

Efficiency 600 
1-br 900 
2-br 1,200 
3-br 1,350 

 

2-BR units are 2,100; 
2,380; 2,530; and 
2,900 sq ft 
 
3-BR units are 4,200 
sq ft  

152.029(C)(7) Baywalk/boardwalk 
requirement 

A public access 
boardwalk must be 
provided along 
shoreline and access 
to that boardwalk must 
be provided with a 
walkway from the 
ROW. Dedicated 
easements shall be 
recorded for the 
boardwalk and access 
corridors. 

Provided 

152.029(C)(8) Building height bonus Additional height may 
be purchased N/A 

152.029(C)(8) Building density 
bonus 

Additional density may 
be purchased, not to 
exceed 70 units per 
acre 

Applicant is 
purchasing additional 
density 

152.029(C)(9)2 Paving surfaces 

Except for covered 
garages, all exterior 
paving surfaces shall 
be constructed of brick 
pavers 

Provided 

152.029(C)(9)3 Required water 
feature 

A water feature shall 
be provided in the 
front 

Provided 

152.029(C)(9)6 Screening of parking 
garages 

Parking garages shall 
be constructed with 
architectural features 
that obscure it from 
public view 

Provided 

152.029(C)(9)7 Street tree lighting 

Lighting shall be 
provided in all areas in 
front where trees are 
planted 

Lighting shall be 
provided as indicated 
in Jan 29, 2014 letter 
from architect 

5.2.2(a)(1) 
Minimum standard 
parking space 
dimensions 

9 ft by 18 ft Provided 

5.2.2(a)(2) 
Minimum compact 
parking space 
dimensions 

8 ft by 16 ft Provided 

Page 321



Section Regulation Required Provided 

5.2.2(a)(3) 
Minimum 
handicapped parking 
space dimensions 

Must comply with all 
applicable accessibility 
standards 

Provided 

152.042(D) Minimum number of 
handicapped spaces 

2% of total required 
spaces. 
 

9 handicapped 
parking spaces 

2% of 123 = 3 
handicapped spaces 
required 

ADA Requirement Minimum number of 
handicapped spaces  

5 handicapped spaces 
for facilities with 101 to 
150 parking spaces 

152.042(E) 
Maximum number of 
compact parking 
spaces 

20% of total required  
 24 
20% of 121 = 24 

152.042(K) 
Minimum setback of 
ROW from parking 
spaces 

20 ft In compliance 

152.042(M) 
Minimum separation 
of parking from 
walkways and streets 

Parking spaces shall 
be separated from 
walkways, sidewalks, 
streets, or alleys by an 
approved wall, fence, 
curbing, or other 
protective device 

In compliance 

152.042(P) Back-out parking 
prohibition 

Parking spaces shall 
not be designed so 
that no vehicle shall be 
required to back into a 
public ROW to obtain 
egress 

Provided 

152.044(A)(2) 
Minimum number of 
parking spaces per 
dwelling unit 

2 spaces per two-
bedroom unit 
 
3 spaces per three-
bedroom unit 
 
Plus 10% of total 
required spaces 
 
46 x 2 = 92 
6 x 3 = 18 
10% of 110 = 11 

121 parking spaces 

110 + 11 = 121 spaces 
required 

152.045(B) Minimum  loading 
space dimensions 

12 ft by 30 ft, and at 
least 14.5 ft of vertical 
clearance 

Provided 

Page 322



Section Regulation Required Provided 

152.045(C) Loading space joint 
usage 

Loading spaces for 
two or more uses may 
be collectively 
provided if so located 
as to be usable by all.  

N/A 

152.045(E) 
Loading and standard 
parking space 
restriction 

No areas supplied to 
meet required off-
street parking facilities 
may be utilized to 
meet the requirements 
for loading spaces. 

In compliance 

152.045(F)(2) 
Minimum number of 
loading spaces for 
multi-family 

Gross 
floor area Spaces 

<25,000 0 
25,000-
50,000 1 

50,000-
100,000 2 

>100,000 3 
 
Not including other 
areas ‘under air’, 
dwelling units alone 
are 123,365 sq ft, 3 
load spaces required 

3 loading spaces 

152.056 
Maximum balcony 
encroachment in to 
side or rear yard 

4 ft 4 ft 

155.17 Minimum width of 
maneuvering aisle 

90 degree parking 
shall be designed 23 ft 
wide maneuvering 
aisles 

Provided 

155.17 Minimum width of 
2-way access aisle 23 ft In compliance 

155.18(A)3 Dumpster screening 

Dumpster enclosures 
shall be designed in a 
manner as to visually 
screen the dumpster 
from adjacent view 
and shall be located in 
visually obscure areas 
of the site. 

Provided 

Page 323



Section Regulation Required Provided 

155.18(A)4 Dumpster placement 

Dumpster enclosures 
shall be placed in such 
a manner as to allow 
front end loader 
sanitation trucks to 
pick up garbage in a 
forward motion. 
Backing out the 
sanitation truck is 
prohibited 

Provided  

155.18(A)5 Mechanical 
equipment screening 

Roof-mounted 
mechanical equipment 
and elevator shafts 
shall be screened by a 
parapet wall or grilles, 
and shall be painted in 
muted colors or match 
the building and shall 
not be visible from the 
street. 

Plans state that future 
roof equipment will be 
screened. 

155.18(A)7 Mechanical 
equipment screening 

Service bays, ground 
mounted air 
conditioning units, and 
other mechanical 
equipment shall be 
screened from public 
and on-site pedestrian 
view, and buffered. 

In compliance 

Appendix D Required benches 
along bay walk 

Benches shall be 
provided at a minimum  
of 2.5 ft sections of 
bench per 100 ft of 
linear shoreline 

Provided 

 
Miami-Dade Landscaping Chapter 18A 

18A-4(C) Vegetative survey 

A vegetation survey 
shall be provided for 
all sites at the same 
scale as the landscape 
plan. 

 
 
A vegetative survey is 
not needed as all 
existing vegetation 
on-site are exotic 
invasive plants. 
 
 

Page 324



Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-4(D) Irrigation plan 

An Irrigation Plan shall 
be submitted. Where a 
landscape plan is 
required, an irrigation 
plan shall be 
submitted 
concurrently. 

Not yet provided 

18A-6(A)(5) Maximum lawn area 
40% of lot area, less 
the area covered by 
buildings 

According to 1-29-14 
letter from landscape 
architect, no sod will 
be used on project 

18A-6(C)(1) Tree height 

Except street trees, all 
trees shall be a 
minimum of 10 ft high 
with a minimum of 2 
inch caliper, except 
that 30% of the tree 
requirement may be 
met by native species 
with a minimum height 
of 8 ft. 

All trees provided 
meet this 
requirement. 

18A-6(C)(2) Street trees 

Street trees shall be 
provided along all 
roadways at a 
maximum average 
spacing of 35 feet on 
center (25’ for palms). 
 

This requirement is 
met  

With 240 linear foot of 
frontage, either 7 trees 
or 10 palms are 
required. 

18A-6(C)(3) Trees under power 
lines 

Where overhead 
power lines require 
low growing trees, 
street trees shall have 
a minimum height of 8 
ft and a maximum 
average spacing of 25 
feet on center. 

A power line is 
present along the 
ROW, but no trees 
are proposed directly 
underneath the line. 

Page 325



Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(C)(4) Palms 

Palms which are 
spaced no more than 
25 feet on center and 
have a 14 foot 
minimum height or 4 
inches minimum 
caliper diameter may 
count as a required 
tree. 

In compliance. 

18A-6(C)(5) Number of required 
trees 

28 trees per acre 
required in multi-family 
residential zoning 
categories 
 

38 trees  

28 x 0.77 = 22 
required trees 

18A-6(C)(11) Limitations on 
required trees 

At least 30% shall be 
native species. 
 
At least 50% shall be 
low maintenance and 
drought tolerant. 
 
Of the required trees, 
no more than 30% 
shall be palms 

In compliance. 
 
 
This requirement has 
been met by native 
trees. 
 
In compliance. 

18A-6(C)(12) Limitations on 
required trees 

80% of required trees 
shall be listed in the 
Miami-Dade 
Landscape Manual, 
the Miami-Dade Street 
Tree Master Plan 
and/or the University 
of Florida’s Low 
Maintenance 
Landscape Plants for 
South Florida list. 

In compliance. 
 

Page 326



Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(D)(1) Shrubs 

All shrubs must be a 
minimum of 18 inches 
a time of planting. 
 
10 shrubs are required 
for each required tree. 
 
 
30% shall be native 
species 
 
 
 
50% shall be low 
maintenance and 
drought tolerant 
 
 
 
80% of required 
shrubs shall be listed 
in the Miami-Dade 
Landscape Manual, 
the Miami-Dade Street 
Tree Master Plan 
and/or the University 
of Florida’s Low 
Maintenance 
Landscape Plants for 
South Florida list. 

All required shrubs 
are at least 18 
inches. 
 
In compliance 
 
 
 
In compliance 
 
 
 
 
In compliance 
 
 
 
 
 
This requirement has 
been met. 
 
 
 

Page 327



Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(H) Use buffers 

Where dissimilar land 
uses exist on adjacent 
properties, that area 
shall be provided with 
a buffer consisting of 
trees spaced to a 
maximum average of 
35-foot on center with 
shrubs which normally 
grow to a height of 6 
feet, or a 6 foot wall 
with trees, within a 5 
foot wide landscape 
strip. 
 
Shrubs shall be a 
minimum of 30 inches 
high and planted at a 
maximum of 36 inches 
on center; or if planted 
at a minimum height of 
36 inches, shall have a 
maximum average 
spacing of 48 inches 
on center. 

There is a park on the 
north side of the 
subject property and 
a multi-family use on 
the south side of the 
property.  
 
Buffering will be 
required on the north 
side of the property to 
screen the dissimilar 
use.  
 
Buffering is not 
required on the south 
side as the use is 
similar to that of the 
subject property. 
 
The buffer shown on 
the north side of the 
property adequately 
meets this 
requirement. 

18A-6(I) Parking lot buffers 

All parking lots 
adjacent to a right of 
way shall be screened 
by a continuous 
planting with a 7 foot 
landscape strip 
incorporating said 
planting 
 
Shrubs shall be a 
minimum of 18 inches 
high and planted at a 
maximum of 30 inches 
on center; or if planted 
at a minimum height of 
36 inches, shall have a 
maximum average 
spacing of 48 inches 
on center. 

There is one exterior 
loading space and 
one exterior standard 
parking space shown 
on the plan. Both are 
adequately buffered. 

Page 328



Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(J) Parking lot 
landscaping 

10 square feet of 
landscaped area per 
parking space shall be 
provided within a 
parking lot. 
 
Trees shall be planted 
within the parking lot 
at a minimum density 
of one tree per 80 
square feet of 
landscaped area, 
exclusive of parking lot 
buffers. 
 
Each tree shall have a 
minimum of 5 feet of 
planting area width, 
exclusive of curb 
dimension. 

N/A. One exterior 
loading space and 
one exterior parking 
space do not 
constitute a ‘parking 
lot’. 

 
Miami-Dade Biscayne Bay Management Plan 

33D-38(1)b Minimum rear setback 

50% of building height 
above 35 ft (measured 
from mean high water 
line), up to 75 ft 
maximum. 
 

25 ft 

~60 ft required 

33D-38(2)a Minimum visual 
corridor 

20% of lot width on 
one side, with a 20 ft 
minimum and a 100 ft 
maximum. Structures 
not permitted in view 
corridor. 
 

48 ft on south side 

48 ft required 

33D-38(3) Minimum side 
setback Minimum of 25 ft 48 ft on south side 

33D-33(4) Waiver from County 

A waiver may be 
obtained from the 
Miami-Dade Shoreline 
Review Committee for 
exemption from the 
above requirements 

Not yet provided 

 
 
  

Page 329



Planning and Zoning Board Recommendations 

 
The North Bay Village Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the site 
plan with the staff recommended conditions by a vote of 5-0 on February 18, 2014. 
 
 

Recommendations 

BUILDING DENSITY BONUS: 

Staff recommends approval of the building density bonus based on a submittal of a site 
plan which meets North Bay Village Code. 
 
 
SITE PLAN: 

Staff recommends approval of the site plan based on our analysis as highlighted 
in this report. Approval should also be based on the following conditions being 
met prior to the issuance of a building permit: 
 

1) Submittal of an irrigation plan which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A requirements 

2) Dedication and recording of the waterfront public boardwalk easement along the 
western property line and the 5 ft wide access easement along the southern 
property line as per section 152.029(C)(7). 

3) Site plan approval from Miami-Dade Shoreline Review Committee. 

4) Meeting Miami-Dade School Board Concurrency requirements as determined by 
School Board Staff. 

5) Payment of any applicable impact fees. 

6) Payment of bonus density fees, as required under Section 152.029(C)8F. 

7) Tie-in to Village’s wastewater system at a Village designed proximate location 
(proposed connection point) and payment of pro-rata costs involved in tying into 
appropriate connection point. 

8) Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 
new development application shall be accepted and no building permit or certificate 
of occupancy shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost 
recovery deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including 
fees related to any previous development proposal applications on the property), 
have been paid in full. 

Page 330



9) Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 
prior to commencement of construction. 

10) Approval of this site plan does not in any way create a right on the part of the 
applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create 
liability on the part of the Village for approval if the applicant fails to obtain requisite 
approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or 
undertakes action that result in a violation of federal or state law. 

11) All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 
construction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
 
April 1, 2014 
 
 
Hearing: North Bay Village Commission, April 8, 2014 
 
 
Attachments: Aerial photograph  
 Future Land Use Map 

 Zoning Map 
  

 

Page 331



AERIAL 
SUBJECT SITE AND ENVIRONS 

 

 

Page 332



 
FUTURE LAND USE 

SUBJECT SITE AND ENVIRONS 

  

Page 333



ZONING 
SUBJECT SITE AND ENVIRONS 

 

Page 334



k  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report  

Special Use Exception 

 

 
Prepared for: North Bay Village 

Commission 
Applicant: 7914 Building LLC 
Site Address:  7914, 7916, and 7918 West Drive 
Request: Special exception for up to twenty percent 

of the required parking spaces to be 
designated for compact vehicles  

  

Page 335



General Information 

 
Owner/Applicant: 

7914 Building LLC 
Fred Knoll 

Applicant Address: 11098 Biscayne Blvd, Suite 203 
Miami, FL  33161 

Site Address: 7914, 7916, and 7918 West Drive 
Contact Person: Adam Henry 
Applicant 
Phone Number: 904-710-1945 

E-mail Address fred_knoll@mfkgrp.com 
 
 

 Existing 

Future Land Use  High Density Multi-family 
Residential 

Zoning District RM-70 
Use of Property Vacant 
Acreage 33,600 sq ft 

 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request 

The applicant is requesting a special use exception pursuant to Sections 152.042(e) 
and 152.098 of the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances to allow up to twenty (20) 
percent of the development's required parking spaces to be designed specifically for 
compact vehicles. 
  

Page 336



General Description 

The proposed site plan for the multi-family residential development shows 121 required 
parking spaces are provided, with 24 of those spaces to be designed for compact 
vehicles. 
 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan 

The request for compact spaces, if approved for this site plan, is consistent with the 
Village’s Comprehensive Plan, and the provision of safe on-site traffic flow as per 
Transportation Policy 3.2.7. 
 

Consistency with Special Use Exception Standards 

The granting of no more than 24 compact parking spaces, for this site plan, would not 
“substantially affect adversely the uses permitted in these regulations of adjacent 
property”. 
 

Planning and Zoning Board Recommendations 

The North Bay Village Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the site 
plan with the staff recommended conditions by a vote of 4-0 on March 18, 2014. 
 

Findings and Recommendations 

Staff finds that this request is consistent with Sections 152.042(e) and 152.098 in 
that this special use exception will not adversely affect the uses permitted in the 
regulations of adjacent properties. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this request for the parking spaces designated for 
compact vehicles contingent upon a positive approval of a site plan for this 
development.  
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
 
April 1, 2014 
 
Hearing: North Bay Village Commission, April 8, 2014 

Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report   

Variance Request 
 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village 
Commission 

Applicant:    William C. Webb Jr. 
Request:   Variance to Maximum Building Height 
        
  

Page 375



General Information 

 
Owner/Applicant: William C. Webb Jr. 

Applicant Address: 1357 Bay Terrace 
North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Site Address: 1357 Bay Terrace 
Contact Person: Lee C. Picker 
Applicant/Contact 
Phone Number: 954-236-8095 

E-mail Address leepicker@email.com 

 
 

Future Land Use Single Family 
Residential 

Zoning District RS-1 

Use of Property Single Family 
Home 

Acreage 0.20  ac. 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

LOT 5 & LOT 4 LESS W37FT & STRIP 1.65 FT WIDE ADJACENT SAME ON SOUTH BLOCK 1 
 
SAID LANDS LYING AND BEING IN THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA CONTAINING 8,858 SQUARE FEET (0.203 ACRES), MORE OR LESS. 
 

Requested Variance 

The applicant is requesting a 4 foot variance to the 25 foot maximum building height allowed 
above FEMA base flood elevation, thereby allowing the average height of the roof to be 29 feet 
above FEMA base flood height where only 25 feet is allowed. 

 

It should be noted that in order to build the structure according to the plans submitted, the 
applicant must receive a 4.5 foot variance to 25 foot maximum building height allowed above 
FEMA base flood elevation, thereby allowing the average height of the roof to be 29.5 feet 
above FEMA base flood height where only 25 feet is allowed. 

Page 376



Project Description 

In April of 2013, the Village Commission granted approval of a request for a variance to the front 
yard setback of this property to allow a 17 foot setback where a 20 foot setback is required. The 
plans that were submitted for that variance request did not include measurements depicting 
building height.  

Three stories, or 25 feet plus the required FEMA base flood elevation, neither to exceed a 
cumulative total of 35 feet. 

In October of 2013, the applicant submitted a full set of plans for site plan approval of a Building 
Permit. North Bay Village Code Section 152.026(C)(3) requires structures in the RS-1 Zoning 
District to conform to the following maximum building height: 

• 

Accordingly, three story structures must only conform to the 35 foot above grade maximum 
building height. However, since the plans depict a two story structure, two height maximums 
must be adhered to: 

• 

The building height from FEMA base flood elevation may not exceed 25 feet, and 

The building height from grade (with grade defined as the highest elevation of the paved 
street in front of the property) may not exceed 35 feet. 

Staff could not approve the plans submitted because the plans depicted a structure with a 29 
foot 2 inch building height from FEMA base flood elevation. 

In January of 2014, the applicant submitted revised plans depicting a structure that met Village 
Code and the parameters of the front setback variance that was granted. Staff approved that 
site plan. 

In February of 2014, the applicant submitted an application for request of a variance to the 
maximum building height of the RS-1 Zoning District, stating in the application the reason for the 
request as follows: 

To keep with the original design of the house that was presented and approved by the 
Commission; we are requesting a height variance of four (4) feet. Redesigning the current 
plans will result in a delay and detract from the overall aesthetics of the house and 
neighborhood. Our goal is to avoid the look of an office building in a residential 
neighborhood, albeit a Mediterranean design ie: 1495 and/or 1520 South Treasure Drive. 

The Applicant has also submitted a letter which is attached to this report. In that letter, and the 
above application statement, the Applicant refers to “the original design that was presented and 
approved by the Commission”. Staff would like to make clear that the Village Commission has 
only approved a request for a variance to the front yard setback. Since the plans that were 
submitted for that variance request did not include measurements depicting the building height, 
there was no way for staff or the Commission to know that the Applicant intended to build higher 
than is allowed by the Village Code. No plans have been approved for this property for a 
structure which exceeds the maximum allowable building height. 

Page 377



 

Additionally, staff would like to point out that the applicant has formally requested a “height 
variance of four (4) feet”. However, the plans submitted with the latest variance application 
depict a structure with an average roof height that is 29.5 feet above FEMA base flood 
elevation. So in order for the structure to be built as shown, a 4.5 foot variance to the 25 foot 
maximum building height allowed above FEMA base flood elevation would have to be granted. 

Required Findings 

Sec. 152.097(B) sets forth the findings that are required for the reviewing body(ies) to authorize 
any variance request.  Sec. 152.097(C) requires that the reviewing body(ies) must make an 
affirmative finding with respect to the criteria listed below.  For ease of review, each of the 
criteria contained in subparagraphs (B)(1) through (B)(3) have been separated into their 
component parts. 
  
(1)a. That there are (or are not) special circumstances and conditions which are peculiar to 

the land, structure, or building involved and which are not generally applicable to other 
lands, structures, or buildings in the same zoning district; 
 
Staff Comments:  The Applicant has provided no evidence of special 
circumstances and/or conditions that are unique to the land or proposed 
structure.  The property is a rectangular shaped lot of 8,858 square feet, in excess 
of the 7,000 square foot minimum lot size required in the RS-1 Zoning District. 
Architectural considerations are not valid reasons for granting a variance. 
 
 

(1)b. that the special circumstances and conditions were not (or were) self-created by any 
person having an interest in the property;  

 
Applicant Comments: Unfortunately, the changes in the flood criteria by FEMA has 
caused us to raise the finish floor on the home by four (4) feet from our previous two-
story home, which in turn makes it extremely challenging to build a two story home.  
 
Staff Comments: There are no special circumstances and/or conditions. Though 
the FEMA criteria may have changed since the time of construction of the 
Applicant’s existing residence, the current FEMA criteria are applied to all 
properties in coastal high hazard areas. The request for more height is a matter of 
choice necessitated only by the preference of the Applicant for a building size that 
results in the need for the variance.  
 
 

(1)c. and that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would (or would not) 
deprive the Applicant of the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building for which 
the variance is sought; 
 
Applicant Comments: When building a two-story home, the current criteria results in 
having to either put a flat roof on the home, which is not conducive with the design 
aesthetics or to incorporate unreasonable lower interior ceilings that are not in keeping 
with homes of this caliber.  

Page 378



 
Staff Comments:  The Applicant has already received a building permit to build a 
structure that conforms to the Village Code and the parameters of the front 
setback variance that was already granted by the Commission. The Applicant has 
the right to build a structure that has already been permitted and the strict 
application of the maximum building height will not deny the Applicant the 
reasonable use of his property. 
 
 

(1)d. and would (or would not) involve an unnecessary hardship for the Applicant. 
 

Staff Comments:  The definition of an unnecessary hardship in Chapter 152 is as 
follows: 

“(2) Hardship, unnecessary. Arduous restrictions upon the uses of a particular 
property, which are unique and distinct from that of adjoining property owners. 
Granting of relief from an unnecessary hardship should not violate sound zoning 
principles, including considerations that: adjacent properties will not be 
substantially reduced in value, it is not granting a special privilege not to be 
enjoyed by others in similar circumstances, and the public interest is maintained, 
including following the spirit of this chapter and the comprehensive master plan. 
Invalid and nonjustifiable bases for pleading unnecessary hardship include but 
are not limited to:  

(a) Loss of the "best" use of the land, and business competition. 

(b) Self-created hardships by the applicant's own acts. 

(c) Neighboring violations and nonconformities. 

(d) Claims of inability to sell the property. 

(e) General restrictions of this chapter.” 
 
There is no unique characteristic about the lot that requires a variance to the 
maximum building height. If the Applicant should choose to build a new home of 
such a size that it requires the structure exceed the maximum building height, any 
perceived hardship is one that is self-created.  
 
Allowing the Applicant to build the structure that has already received a building 
permit does not deprive the Applicant of reasonable use of the land. 

 
 
(2)a. That granting the variance requested will not (or will) confer on the Applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by this chapter to other land, structures, or buildings in the same 
zoning district; 

 
Staff Comments: It is our opinion that granting the requested building height 
variance would confer on the Applicant a special privilege that is denied to other 
lands in the RS-1 Zoning District. 

 
 

Page 379



(2)b. and the variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, structure, or building. 

 
Staff Comments:  Strict application of the maximum building height will not deny 
the Applicant the reasonable use of his property.  Consequently, we are of the 
opinion that no variance to the maximum building height is necessary; especially 
since the applicant has the right to build a structure according to the plans that 
were submitted and approved in January 2014, which do meet the Code. 
 
 

(3) That granting the variance will (or will not) be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of this chapter, and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood 
or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.  

  
Applicant Comments: Approval of this variance and/or an adjustment of the City code 
in accordance with the new flood criteria will allow the City to attract future homeowners 
desiring to build homes that lend themselves to the overall Mediterranean ambiance that 
North Bay Village lends itself to. This variance and/or code change will be beneficial to 
all current and future homeowners as well as the City and will in time allow the City to 
benefit from an increased tax base. 
 
Staff Comments:  While we do not feel that the granting of the variance would be 
particularly injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public 
welfare, nevertheless, the granting of the variance will not be in harmony with the 
general intent of Chapter 152.  Most importantly, the request does not meet the 
very specific requirements for granting a variance.   

 
 

The City’s LDC contains the same criteria in Sec. 2.7.6 as discussed above except they are 
numbered (1) through (6).  The LDC also includes a seventh criterion which reads as follows: 
 
7. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of 

development. 
 

Staff Comments:  We do not believe that the Applicant has based this variance 
request exclusively to reduce the cost of development. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 380



Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of a variance request to allow 
the structure to exceed the North Bay Village maximum building height to be more than 25 feet 
above FEMA base flood elevation by a 3-1 vote on March 18, 2014. 
 
 
 

Recommendations 

Based on the current code restrictions for height in single family districts, staff does not 
recommend approval of the requested variance to allow the structure to exceed the North Bay 
Village maximum building height to be more than 25 feet above FEMA base flood elevation. 
 
Staff finds that the requested variance does not meet the requirements of Sec. 152.097 (C) in 
that the materials submitted do not adequately allow for an affirmative finding on most of the 
criteria contained in 152.097(B) as specifically identified by the foregoing Staff Comments.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
 
April 1, 2014 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, April 8, 2014 
 
 

Page 381



 

Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report   

Variance Request 
 
 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village 
Commission 

Applicant: Holger Piening 
Request: Variance from Side Yard Setback for 

Placement of Pool Equipment 

Page 407



General Information 

 
Applicant Holger Piening 

Applicant Address 1700 S Treasure Dr 
North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Site Address 1700 S Treasure Dr 
Contact Person Nicole J. Huesmann 
Contact Phone Number 305-858-0220 
E-mail Address njhuesmann@njhlaw.com 

 
 
Future Land Use Map Classification Single Family Residential 
Zoning District RS-2 
Use of Property Single Family Home 
Acreage 0.21 ac. 
 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

LOT 5, BLOCK 1 OF TREASURE ISLAND, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 50 ON PAGE 67 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
SAID LANDS LYING AND BEING IN NORTH BAY VILLAGE, MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA CONTAINING 9,000 SQUARE FEET (0.207 ACRES), MORE OR LESS. 
 
 

Requested Variance 

The applicant’s letter of intent states that the request is for approval of a variance “to permit pool 
pump equipment to encroach into the East side 4.2 feet (7.5 feet required) from the interior side 
East property line.” 
 
However, the plans submitted by the applicant for this variance depict the pool equipment 3.5 
feet from the east side property line. So in order for the plans to be built as shown, the Village 
Commission must approve a 4 foot variance from the 7.5 foot required side setback, allowing 
the pool equipment to be placed 3.5 feet from the property line where 7.5 feet is required. 
  

Page 408



Project Description 

 

The applicant intends to construct a new single family home in the North Bay Village RS-2 
Zoning District. North Bay Village Code Section 152.027 requires structures in the RS-2 zoning 
district to be setback at least 7.5 feet from the interior lot lines. The plans depict the first floor of 
the proposed structure 7 feet 10 inches from the east side property line and the applicant would 
like to place the pool equipment on the side of the house encroaching into the required side 
yard setback area.  

 

In order to allow the applicant to build the plans as submitted, a 4 foot variance to the 7.5 foot 
required side yard setback must be approved by the Village Commission, thereby allowing a 3.5 
foot setback where 7.5 feet is required. 

 

Required Findings 

Sec. 152.0971(B) sets forth findings that are required for the reviewing body(ies) to authorize 
any non-use variance request. In addition to staff comments on these items, the applicant’s 
comments (included in his letter) have been listed as well. For ease of review, each of the 
criteria contained in subparagraphs (B)(1) through (B)(3) have been separated into their 
component parts. 
 
(1) The variance will be in harmony with the general appearance and character of the 

community. 
 

Applicant Comments: The pool pump equipment does not provide a detrimental impact 
to adjoining property 
 
Staff Comments: The plans and renderings submitted by the applicant depict 
landscaping along the property line. From the plans provided, it is not clear if the 
proposed landscaping will be tall enough to completely obscure the pool 
equipment from view, but this can be made a condition of approval. 

 
(2) The variance will not be injurious to the area involved or otherwise detrimental to the 

public welfare. 
 

Applicant Comments: The applicant has made every effort to prepare a design and to 
select a pool pump equipment manufacturer that will have the least amount of impact to 
the adjoining properties. 
 
Staff Comments: Provided that the equipment installed is operational at a 
reasonable decibel level, staff does not believe that the pool equipment will be 
detrimental to public welfare. 
 
 

(3) The improvement is designed and arranged on the site in a manner that minimizes aerial 
and visual impact on the adjacent residences. 
 
Staff Comments: This improvement should not have an aerial/visual impact on the 
adjacent residences. 

Page 409



Staff finds that the requested variance does meet the requirements of Section 152.0971 in that 
the materials submitted adequately allow for an affirmative finding on all of the criteria contained 
as specifically identified by the foregoing staff comments. 
 

Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of a variance request to allow a 3.5 
foot setback from the property line where a 7.5 foot setback is required, along with staff’s 
recommended stipulations (as shown below) by a 4-0 vote on March 18, 2014. 
 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of a variance to allow a 3.5 foot setback from the property line 
where a 7.5 foot setback is required, with the following stipulations: 
 

1. To comply with Section 151.25, landscaping and/or other methods of screening must be 
provided which screens the entire height of the pool equipment. 

2. Building permits and related approvals for generator installation must be obtained from the 
Building Official prior to commencement of construction. 

3. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 
construction. 

4. Cost Recovery changes must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 
building permit shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery 
deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees related to 
any previous development proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

5. Authorization or issue of a variance or a building permit by the Village does not in any way 
create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, 
and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a variance or a 
building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations 
imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that result in a violation of 
federal or state law. 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
April 1, 2014 
 
Hearing: North Bay Village Commission, April 8, 2014 

Page 410



 
 

Page 411



 
 

Page 412



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report   

Variance Request 
 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village 
Commission 

Applicant:    Holger Piening 
Request:   Variance to Minimum Side Yard Setback 
       for Placement of a Stoop and Steps 
  

Page 416



General Information 

 
Owner/Applicant: Holger Piening 

Applicant Address: 1700 S Treasure Dr 
North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Site Address: 1700 S Treasure Dr 
Contact Person: Nicole J. Huesmann 
Contact Phone Number: 305-858-0220 
E-mail Address njhuesmann@njhlaw.com 

 
 

Future Land Use Map Classification Single Family 
Residential 

Zoning District RS-2 

Use of Property Single Family 
Home 

Acreage (per survey) 0.21  ac. 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

LOT 5, BLOCK 1 OF TREASURE ISLAND, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 50 ON PAGE 67 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
SAID LANDS LYING AND BEING IN NORTH BAY VILLAGE, MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA CONTAINING 9,000 SQUARE FEET (0.207 ACRES), MORE OR LESS. 
 
 

Requested Variance 

The letter of intent submitted by the applicant states that the request is for approval of a 
variance “to permit steps and landing leading from the pool deck into the residence along the 
East side to encroach 4.5 feet (7.5 feet required) from the interior side East property line.” 

 

The plans submitted by the applicant for this variance depict the steps and landing 3.5 feet from 
the east side property line. So in order for the plans to be built as shown, the Commission must 
approve a 4 foot variance from the 7.5 foot required side setback, allowing the steps and 
landing to encroach 4 feet into the required 7.5 foot side yard setback. 

Page 417



Project Description 

The applicant plans to construct a new single family home in the North Bay Village RS-2 Zoning 
District. The project incorporates ground level decking throughout the backyard that will extend 
around the sides of the house into the areas between the sides of the house and the side lot 
lines. The plans depict a stoop with stairs extending out from one side of the house leading 
down to the deck. The stoop and stairs are depicted as encroaching 4 feet into the required side 
yard setback area. According to Section 152.027(C)(2), the setback requirement from the side 
property line is 7.5 feet.  

 

In order to allow the applicant to build the plans as submitted, a 4 foot variance to the 7.5 foot 
required side yard setback must be approved by the Village Commission, thereby allowing a 3.5 
foot setback where 7.5 feet is required. 

Required Findings 

Sec. 152.097

 

(B) sets forth the findings that are required for the reviewing body(ies) to authorize 
any variance request. Sec. 152.097(C) requires that the reviewing body(ies) must make an 
affirmative finding with respect to the criteria listed below. For ease of review, each of the 
criteria contained in subparagraphs (B)(1) through (B)(3) have been separated into their 
component parts. 

(1)a. That there are (or are not) special circumstances and conditions which are peculiar to 
the land, structure, or building involved and which are not generally applicable to other 
lands, structures, or buildings in the same zoning district; 

 
Staff Comments:  The Applicant has provided no evidence of special 
circumstances and/or conditions that are unique to the land or proposed 
structure.  The property is a rectangular shaped lot of 9,000 square feet, in excess 
of the 6,000 square foot minimum lot size required in the RS-2 Zoning District; and 
with 60 foot width, which meets the 60 foot minimum frontage required in the RS-2 
District. Architectural considerations are not valid reasons for granting a variance. 
 
 

(1)b. that the special circumstances and conditions were not (or were) self-created by any 
person having an interest in the property;  

 
Staff Comments: There are no special circumstances and/or conditions.  The need 
for a stoop and steps is matters of choice necessitated only by the preference of 
the Applicant for a side entrance and a building size that results in the need for 
the variance.  

Page 418



(1)c. and that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would (or would not) 
deprive the Applicant of the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building for which 
the variance is sought; 
 
Staff Comments:  While it would require the construction of a somewhat smaller 
home or the elimination of the steps and stoop from the building plans, the strict 
application of the minimum side yard setback of 7.5 feet will not deny the 
Applicant the reasonable use of the property. 
 
 

(1)d. and would (or would not) involve an unnecessary hardship for the Applicant. 
 

Applicant Comments: The requirements of flood elevation criteria for the residence and 
the access to the wooden pool deck create a hardship for the Applicant. In addition the 
width of the lot and the associated setbacks to a narrow lot restricts the Applicant from 
reasonable use of the land. Strict application of the Village Code for these structures 
create an unnecessary hardship. 
 
Staff Comments:  The definition of an unnecessary hardship in Chapter 152 is as 
follows: 

 “(2) Hardship, unnecessary. Arduous restrictions upon the uses of a particular property, 
which are unique and distinct from that of adjoining property owners. Granting of relief from an 
unnecessary hardship should not violate sound zoning principles, including considerations that: 
adjacent properties will not be substantially reduced in value, it is not granting a special 
privilege not to be enjoyed by others in similar circumstances, and the public interest is 
maintained, including following the spirit of this chapter and the comprehensive master plan. 
Invalid and nonjustifiable bases for pleading unnecessary hardship include but are not limited 
to:  
(a) Loss of the "best" use of the land, and business competition. 
(b) Self-created hardships by the applicant's own acts. 
(c) Neighboring violations and nonconformities. 
(d) Claims of inability to sell the property. 
(e) General restrictions of this chapter.” 

 
There is no unique characteristic about the lot that requires a variance to the 
minimum side yard setback.  The size of the structure is a choice made by the 
Applicant. 
 
If the Applicant should choose to build a new home of such a size that it requires 
that the structure encroach into the required setback, any perceived hardship is 
one that is self-created. Similarly, if the Applicant wishes to add the stoop and 
steps, a thinner house would allow such features without the need for a variance. 
 
Requiring the Applicant to modify the proposed site plan to meet the code does 
not deprive the Applicant of reasonable use of the land.  A minor loss of square 
footage does not constitute an unnecessary hardship. 

Page 419



(2)a. That granting the variance requested will not (or will) confer on the Applicant any special 
privilege that is denied by this chapter to other land, structures, or buildings in the same 
zoning district; 

 
Staff Comments: The width and depth of the lot is the same as many of the other 
lots in the RS-2 district. It is our opinion that granting the requested side yard 
setback variance would confer on the Applicant a special privilege that is denied 
to other lands in the RS-2 Zoning District.   

 
 
(2)b. and the variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 

reasonable use of the land, structure, or building. 
 

Applicant Comments: The granting of the requested variances is the minimum 
variance possible to allow the Applicant reasonable and functional use of the land and 
building. It would permit the applicant to construct a residence that is compatible other 
residences in the area. 
 
Staff Comments:  Strict application of the minimum side yard setback of 7.5 feet 
will not deny the Applicant the reasonable use of his property.  Consequently, we 
are of the opinion that no variance to the side yard setback is necessary. 
 
 

(3) That granting the variance will (or will not) be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of this chapter, and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood 
or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.  

  
Applicant Comments: Granting the variance would allow the applicant to construct a 
residence that would be in harmony with the general intent of the LDRs. The overall 
height of the landing and pool pump equipment would not be detrimental to the public 
welfare. The proposed residence when completed will increase property values to 
neighboring properties. 
 
Staff Comments:  We do not feel that the granting of the variance would be 
particularly injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public 
welfare. Nevertheless, the granting of the variance will not be in harmony with the 
general intent of Chapter 152.  Most importantly, the request does not meet the 
very specific requirements for granting a variance.   

 
 

The City’s LDC contains the same criteria in Sec. 2.7.6 as discussed above except they are 
numbered (1) through (6).  The LDC also includes a seventh criterion which reads as follows: 
 
7. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of 

development. 
 

Staff Comments:  We do not believe that the Applicant has based this variance 
request exclusively to reduce the cost of development. 
 

Page 420



Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the variance request to allow 
less than the required 7.5 foot setback from the side property line by a 4-0 vote on March 18, 
2014. 
 
 
 
 

Recommendations 

Staff does not recommend approval of the requested variance to allow less than the required 
7.5 foot setback from the side property line. 
 
Staff finds that the requested variance does not meet the requirements of Sec. 152.097 (C) in 
that the materials submitted do not adequately allow for an affirmative finding on most of the 
criteria contained in 152.097(B) as specifically identified by the foregoing Staff Comments.   
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
 
April 1, 2014 
 
 
Hearing: North Bay Village Commission, April 8, 2014  
 

Page 421



 

 
 

Page 422



 
 

Page 423



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 424



 

Page 425



 

Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report   

Variance Request 
 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village 
Commission 

Applicant:    Kaukuta Saint 
Request:   Variance to Side Yard Setback for 
       Placement of Generator 
  

Page 451



General Information 

 
Owner/Applicant: Kaukuta Saint 

Applicant Address: 7441 Center Bay Drive 
North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Site Address: 7441 Center Bay Drive 
Contact Person: Kaukuta Saint 
Phone Number: 786-338-0347 
E-mail Address k.fb@me.com 

 
 

Future Land Use Single Family 
Residential 

Zoning District RS-1 

Use of Property Single Family 
Home 

Acreage 0.18  ac. 
 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

LOT 5, BLOCK 4, OF NORTH BAY ISLAND, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 40 AT PAGE 59 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF MIAMI-DADE, 
FLORIDA 
 
SAID LANDS LYING AND BEING IN THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA CONTAINING 7,700 SQUARE FEET (0.177 ACRES), MORE OR LESS. 
 
 

Requested Variance 

 

The applicant is requesting a 4 foot variance to the 10 foot minimum side yard setback allowed 
in the North Bay Village RS-1 Zoning District, thereby allowing a generator to be 6 feet from the 
side lot line where 10 feet is required. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 452



Project Description 

 

The applicant owns a single family residence on Center Bay Drive, in North Bay Village. Section 
152.056 of the North Bay Village Code requires that every front, side, and rear yard setback 
shall be open and unobstructed from the ground to the sky. In order to provide power to his 
residence in times of power outage, the applicant would like to place a generator in the southern 
side setback area of the property. The generator would be placed on an existing concrete pad 
and would be located next to existing AC units that are also currently encroaching on the side 
yard setback area. The existing AC units encroach approximately 4 feet into the side yard 
setback area. The dimensions of the proposed generator are approximately 2.1 feet by 2.4 feet 
by 4 feet. And the applicant states that it will encroach no further into the side setback area than 
the existing AC units. Additionally, the applicant has stated that there are existing trees and 
shrubs which will screen the generator; and he plans to apply for a building permit to continue 
an existing side yard fence, so that it will extend past the proposed generator. Please see 
attached letter, survey, and generator specifications submitted by the applicant. 

 

Required Findings 

 
Sec. 152.097(B) sets forth the findings that are required for the reviewing body(ies) to authorize 
any variance request.  Sec. 152.097(C) requires that the reviewing body(ies) must make an 
affirmative finding with respect to the criteria listed below.  For ease of review, each of the 
criteria contained in subparagraphs (B)(1) through (B)(3) have been separated into their 
component parts. 
 
(1)a. That there are (or are not) special circumstances and conditions which are peculiar to 

the land, structure, or building involved and which are not generally applicable to other 
lands, structures, or buildings in the same zoning district; 

 
Staff Comments:  The Applicant has provided no evidence of special 
circumstances and/or conditions that are unique to the land or proposed 
structure.  The property is a rectangular shaped lot of 7,700 square feet, in excess 
of the 7,000 square foot minimum lot size required in the RS-1 Zoning District. The 
property is 70 feet wide, meeting the RS-1 District minimum frontage requirement 
of 70 feet.  
 
 

(1)b. that the special circumstances and conditions were not (or were) self-created by any 
person having an interest in the property;  

 
Applicant: The applicant states that the existing single family structure is built out to the 
required front and side setbacks and that this makes placement of the generator difficult. 
 
Staff Comments: There are no special circumstances and/or conditions.  The need 
for the generator is a matter of choice. The fact that the existing structure is built 
out to the front and side setback areas does not constitute something that is 
peculiar to the land or structure and is not a valid reason for granting a variance.  
 

Page 453



(1)c. and that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would (or would not) 
deprive the Applicant of the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building for which 
the variance is sought; 
 
Applicant: The applicant has stated that, on North Bay Island, there are existing 
standby generators and other equipment like AC compressors and pool equipment 
installed within the required side setbacks at various locations. 
 
Staff Comments: The applicant’s statement on this matter is accurate and 
indicative of the general allowance of mechanical equipment to encroach on side 
yard setback areas on North Bay Island, however those situations came to occur. 
Since the encroachment of mechanical equipment seems to be a pervasive 
situation, staff agrees that it is a reasonable use of the land to allow new 
mechanical equipment to be placed in such a manner that it encroaches no further 
than existing mechanical equipment. 
 
 

(1)d. and would (or would not) involve an unnecessary hardship for the Applicant. 
 

Staff Comments: The definition of an unnecessary hardship in Chapter 152 is as 
follows: 
 “(2) Hardship, unnecessary. Arduous restrictions upon the uses of a particular property, 

which are unique and distinct from that of adjoining property owners. Granting of relief from an 
unnecessary hardship should not violate sound zoning principles, including considerations that: 
adjacent properties will not be substantially reduced in value, it is not granting a special 
privilege not to be enjoyed by others in similar circumstances, and the public interest is 
maintained, including following the spirit of this chapter and the comprehensive master plan. 
Invalid and nonjustifiable bases for pleading unnecessary hardship include but are not limited 
to:  
(a) Loss of the "best" use of the land, and business competition. 
(b) Self-created hardships by the applicant's own acts. 
(c) Neighboring violations and nonconformities. 
(d) Claims of inability to sell the property. 
(e) General restrictions of this chapter.” 

 
Since several neighboring properties already contain existing mechanical 
equipment encroachments, this is not a unique request. 

 
 
(2)a. That granting the variance requested will not (or will) confer on the Applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by this chapter to other land, structures, or buildings in the same 
zoning district; 

 
Staff Comments: Granting the request of this variance allows the applicant an 
encroachment similar to those currently existing on neighboring properties. 

 
 

Page 454



(2)b. and the variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, structure, or building. 

 
Staff Comments:  The variance sought by the applicant would allow the proposed 
equipment to encroach no further than existing equipment. 
 
 

(3) That granting the variance will (or will not) be in harmony with the general intent and 
purpose of this chapter, and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood 
or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.  

  
Staff Comments:  It is possible that the decibel levels associated with the 
operation of a generator could exceed that of the existing mechanical equipment 
of neighboring North Bay Island properties, in which case, this proposal would be 
injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 
However, the applicant has provided manufacturer specifications for the proposed 
generator, which include operational decibel levels. The manufacturer states that 
the maintenance cycle generates 60 decibels and normal operation generates 66 
decibels. Research conducted by staff indicates that 66 decibels may be slightly 
louder than the average AC unit, but is approximately equivalent to the noise level 
of a household vacuum cleaner. Additionally, usage will most likely not be on a 
regular basis. 

 
 

The City’s LDC contains the same criteria in Sec. 2.7.6 as discussed above except they are 
numbered (1) through (6).  The LDC also includes a seventh criterion which reads as follows: 
 
7. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of 

development. 
 

Staff Comments:  This variance request is not based on a desire to reduce the 
cost of development. 
 
 
 

Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the variance request to 
allow a 6 foot setback from the property line where a 10 foot setback is required, along 
with the staff’s recommended stipulations, as shown below, by a 4-0 vote on March 18, 
2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 455



Recommendations 

Staff recommends approval of the requested variance to allow a 6 foot setback from the 
property line where a 10 foot setback is required, with the following stipulations: 
 

1. To comply with Section 151.25, screening must be provided which screens the entire 
height of the generator structure (applicant has stated his intention to comply with this by 
extending his side yard fence). 

2. Generator testing times shall be restricted to between 10am and 2pm on weekdays and 
non-holidays. 

3. Building permits and related approvals for generator installation must be obtained from the 
Building Official prior to commencement of construction. 

4. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 
construction. 

5. Cost Recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 
building permit shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery 
deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees related to 
any previous development proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

6. Authorization or issue of a variance or a building permit by the Village does not in any way 
create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, 
and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a variance or a 
building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations 
imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that result in a violation of 
federal or state law. 

 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
April 1, 2014 
 
 
Hearing: North Bay Village Commission, April 8, 2014 

Page 456



 

Page 457



 

Page 458



 

Page 459



 

Page 460



 

Page 461



 
 

Page 462



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report   

Variance Request 
 
 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village 
Commission 

Applicant: Kaukuta Saint 
Request: Variance from Front Yard Setback 

Standards for Placement of Carport  

Page 463



General Information 

 
Owner/Applicant: Kaukuta Saint 

Applicant Address: 7441 Center Bay Drive 
North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Site Address: 7441 Center Bay Drive 
Contact Person: Kaukuta Saint 
Applicant/Contact 
Phone Number: 786-338-0347 

E-mail Address k.fb@me.com 
 
 

Future Land Use  Single Family 
Residential 

Zoning District RS-1 

Use of Property Single Family 
Home 

Acreage  0.18  ac. 
 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

LOT 5, BLOCK 4, OF NORTH BAY ISLAND, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 40 AT PAGE 59 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF MIAMI-DADE, 
FLORIDA 
 
SAID LANDS LYING AND BEING IN THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA CONTAINING 7,700 SQUARE FEET (0.177 ACRES), MORE OR LESS. 
 

Requested Variance 

The applicant’s request is for approval of a variance to the front setback requirements for 
installation of a carport canopy. 
 
The applicant has submitted two alternate plans for front yard canopy structures. Both plans 
depict the canopies extending from the house all the way to the front property line. Thus, the 
variance request is for allowance of a canopy (or canopies) to be placed 0 feet from the property 
line where 20 feet is required. The Commission has the option to deny the request, approve 
Canopy Plan A, or approve the applicants preferred Canopy Plan B. See alternate plans 
attached to this document. 
 
 

Page 464



The applicant states that branches have fallen from the palm trees that exist in the right-of-way 
area in front of his house. The branches have damaged his vehicle and he would like to prevent 
this damage from occurring again by constructing carport canopies that would cover the 
driveway. 
 
 

Required Findings 

Sec. 152.0971(B) sets forth findings that are required for the reviewing body(ies) to authorize 
any non-use variance request. In addition to staff comments on these items, the applicant’s 
comments (included in his letter) have been listed as well. For ease of review, each of the 
criteria contained in subparagraphs (B)(1) through (B)(3) have been separated into their 
component parts. 
 
(1) The variance will be in harmony with the general appearance and character of the 

community. 
 

Applicant Comments: There are existing carports installed within the required front 
setbacks at various locations. 
 
Staff Comments: It does not appear that the proposed carport(s) would be out of 
harmony with the neighborhood or community. 

 
(2) The variance will not be injurious to the area involved or otherwise detrimental to the 

public welfare. 
 

Staff Comments: It does not appear that the proposed carport(s) would be 
injurious to the area involved or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 
 

(3) The improvement is designed and arranged on the site in a manner that minimizes aerial 
and visual impact on the adjacent residences. 
 
Staff Comments: This improvement will be visible to adjacent residences.  

 
 
Staff finds that the requested variance does meet the requirements of Section 152.0971 in that 
the materials submitted adequately allow for an affirmative finding on most of the criteria 
contained as specifically identified by the foregoing staff comments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 465



Recommendation: 

Unless there are any objections from the neighboring properties, staff recommends approval of 
a variance to allow a 0 foot setback from the front property line where a 20 foot setback is 
required, with the following stipulations: 
 

1. Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official prior to 
commencement of construction. 

2. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 
construction. 

3. Cost Recovery changes must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 
building permit shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery 
deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees related to 
any previous development proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

4. Authorization or issue of a variance or a building permit by the Village does not in any way 
create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, 
and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a variance or a 
building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations 
imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that result in a violation of 
federal or state law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
April 1, 2014 
 
 
Hearing: North Bay Village Commission, April 8, 2014 
 
 

Page 466



 

Page 467



 

 
 
 

Page 468



 

Page 469



 

 
 
 

Page 470



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 471



Letters of Consent from Neighboring Property Owners 
 

 
 
 

Page 472



 
 
 

Page 473



 
 
 

Page 474



Page 475



Page 476



Page 477



Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



Page 482



Page 483



Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



Page 492



Page 493



Page 494



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report   

Permit Application for Dock 
 
 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village Commission 
Applicant:    Rebecca Ocariz 
Request: Permit for a dock to be constructed, 

projecting less than 25 feet from the 
bulkhead line.

Page 495



General Information 

 
Owner/Applicant Rebecca Ocariz 

Applicant Address 6815 Biscayne Blvd. Suite 103457 
Miami, Fl. 33138 

Site Address 1460 S. Treasure Dr. 
Contact Person Leandro Fernandez 
Contact Phone Number 786-390-7493 
E-mail Address leaf@leafengineering.net 
Zoning District RS-2 
Use of Property Single Family Home 

 
 

General Description 

The applicant is requesting a permit to construct a new dock at a residence in the RS-2 
Zoning District.  The dock is proposed to be 60 feet wide and extend 11 feet from the 
existing seawall into Biscayne Bay. 

 

Applicable Code Provisions 

The construction or alteration of docks, piers, etc is governed by Section 150.11 and 
specifically subsections (A) and (F).  

Section 150.11 reads as follows: 

“(A) No person, firm, or corporation shall construct, reconstruct, or repair any docks, 
piers, dolphins, wharfs, pilings, similar structures of any kind more than twenty-five 
(25) feet perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline into any waterway within the 
corporate limits of the city. Provided however, if construction of a docking facility is 
prevented by the requirement of federal, state or preemptive local environmental 
laws, rules and regulations (laws) whereby in order to obtain a permit for 
construction of a docking facility, it is necessary to exceed the same more than 
twenty-five (25) feet perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline, the docking 
facility may be constructed such distance from the seawall or shoreline as may be 
required in order to comply with such laws by obtaining a waiver from the City 
Commission in accordance with subsection (G), provided further, however the 
furthermost distance seaward from the seawall or shoreline shall not exceed 
seventy-five (75) feet including all dolphins or pilings installed beyond the seaward 
most line of the dock or pier but not including required rip-rap.  

Page 496



(B) Plans and specifications for construction, reconstruction, or repair of docks, piers, 
dolphins, wharfs, pilings, or similar structures shall comply with all provisions of the 
City Code, shall be approved by the City Manager, and shall be kept permanently 
in the records of the city. Repair or reconstruction may be made in accordance with 
the original plans.  

(C) No dock, pier, wharf, dolphin, piling, or similar structure shall be erected in the city 
unless the structure is set back at least seven and one-half feet from the lot line on 
each side; and the structure shall not exceed five (5) feet above ground level, 
except a joint or "party" dock may be permitted on the property line if approved by 
the City Commission.  

(D) No person, firm, or corporation shall build, maintain, extend, or make any structural 
alteration on any building, dock, pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, seawall, or 
similar structure in, upon, or over the waters adjacent to Harbor Island, Treasurer 
Island, North Bay Island, and Cameo Island within the corporate limits of the city, 
or do any filling, excavating, or dredging in the waters without first obtaining a 
written permit to do so from the City Manager.  

(E) Application for any permit or the transfer of any permit required by this section shall 
be made to the City Manager in writing on forms provided therefore. The permit 
shall constitute an agreement by the applicant to comply with all conditions 
imposed upon granting of the permit. The application shall be accompanied by 
plans and specifications setting forth in detail the work to be done.  

(F) All applications for construction or structural alterations of any building, dock, pier, 
dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, seawall, or similar structure in, upon, or over the 
waters within the corporate limits of the city shall require the approval of the City 
Commission after a public hearing. During the public hearing the City Commission 
shall consider safety and compatibility as criteria for approving the application.  

(G) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (F), if an applicant seeks a dock or 
pier length greater than twenty-five (25) feet, the City Commission shall additionally 
consider the following criteria to determine if a waiver shall be granted:  

(i) If Miami Dade Department of Environmental Management has required specific 
depth or location criteria; and 

(ii) If the Applicant has provided to the City notarized letter(s) of consent from 
adjoining riparian property owners, and 

(iii) If the City has received any letter(s) of objection from adjoining riparian property 
owners; and 

(iv) Any other factors relevant to the specific site. 

 

Page 497



(H) The City Commission may deny, approve, or modify the request and/or impose 
conditions in the permit, pursuant to paragraph (F), or granting of a waiver, 
pursuant to paragraph (G), which it deems necessary to protect the waterways of 
the City in accordance with the public safety and the general welfare. The 
requirement of approval by the City Commission shall not include applications for 
repair of existing structures.  

(I) A public hearing held pursuant to this Section shall be quasi judicial and follow the 
hearing procedures provided in Section 29.02 of the Code.  

(J) Nothing contained in this section shall be construed or apply to prohibiting repair or 
reconstruction or otherwise limiting those structures which exist at the time of 
adoption of this section, however, the provisions of subsections (D) and (E) above 
shall be complied with.” 

 

The location of boats, docks and piers is also governed by Section 152.059, most 
specifically subsection (B) which reads as follows:  

“(B) No docks, piers, mooring posts, or combinations thereof, may project more than 
twenty-five (25) feet from any bulkhead line, nor extend nearer than seven and 
one-half feet to any adjacent property line. A waiver may be granted by the City 
Commission pursuant to Section 150.11(A), upon completion of a marine survey 
demonstrating the minimum distances from the seawall necessary to meet the 
minimum depth requirements, approved by DERM, and completed by a licensed 
professional surveyor and mapper registered to practice in the State of Florida.” 

 
 
 
 

Staff Comments 

The dock complies with the zoning regulations of Section152.059 and the standards of 
Section 150.11 in that the proposed dock does not exceed 25 feet from the seawall and 
will be located so that the 7.5 foot side setbacks from the property lines are met.  
 
Additionally, the plans provided appear to depict the proposed dock and pilings will be 
less than the 5 foot required maximum height of Section 150.11(C). 
 
Based on the materials presented by the applicant, the proposed structures are in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of Sections 152.059 and 150.11 and the 
proposed dock is safe and compatible. 
 
 
 

Page 498

http://library.municode.com/HTML/12195/level2/TITIIIAD_CH29QUDIPRACPUOFCOPR.html#TITIIIAD_CH29QUDIPRACPUOFCOPR_S29.02COQUDIPR�


Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the application subject to the following: 
 
1. Verification of the 5 foot height restriction at the time of building permit issuance. 
 
2. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited 

to, compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be 
obtained before commencement of construction. 

 
3.  Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 

prior to commencement of construction. 
 
4.  Cost Recovery changes must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 

new development application shall be accepted and no building permit shall be 
issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and 
outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees related to any 
previous development proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

 
5.  Authorization or issue of a building permit by the Village does not in any way create 

a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, 
and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a building 
permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations 
imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that results in a violation 
of federal or state law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
April 1, 2014 
 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, April 8, 2014 
 
 
Attachments: Dock Plans Submitted by Applicant 

Page 499



 

Page 500



 

Page 501



 

 
 

Page 502



Page 503



Page 504



Page 505



Page 506



Page 507



Page 508



Page 509



Page 510



Page 511



Page 512



Page 513



Page 514



Page 515



Page 516



Page 517



Page 518



Page 519



Page 520



Page 521



Page 522



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Report   

Variance Request 
 
 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village Commission 
Applicant: Bayview Condominium Association and 

Verizon Wireless 
Request: Variance from Setback Standards for 

Placement of Generator 

Page 523



General Information 

 

Applicant Bayview Condominium Association and 
Verizon Wireless 

Applicant Address 1625 Kennedy Causeway, North Bay Village 
Site Address 1625 Kennedy Causeway 
Contact Person Robert Perry 
Phone Number 248-773-2976 
E-mail Address robert@telesitewireless.com 

 
 
Future Land Use Map Classification Commercial 
Zoning District General Commercial (CG) 
Use of Property Multi-Family Condominium 
Acreage 1.14 acres (49,500 sq ft) 
 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 

 
A parcel of land lying within lands of BAYVIEW CONDOMINIUM AT NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, recorded in Official Records Book 21589, Page 2565, of the Public Records 
of Miami-Dade County, Florida, said condominium property being all of Tract “A”, 
CAREY PLAT, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 157, Page 90, of 
the Public Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida. 
 

Item Before the Village Commission 

 
Bayview Condominiums is a seventy-five unit, 13 story, multi-family development 
approved as Carey Properties in 2000/01 and built in 2003. Since the Bayview 
Condominiums were built according to the RM-70 setback and site plan standards, the 
applicants (Verizon with permission from Bayview Condo Association) are requesting a 
variance from the regulations of Section 152.029(C)(2) of the North Bay Village Code to 
allow a 6 foot 5 inch encroachment into the required 15 foot side setback area, for the 
purpose of installing a backup generator to supply power to the existing cellular 
communications equipment on the roof of the structure. 
 
  

Page 524



Adjacent Future Land Use Map Classifications and Zoning Districts 

 
North: Future Land Use Map Classification: Water 
 Zoning District: Water 
 Existing Land Use: Biscayne Bay 
   East: Future Land Use Map Classification:  Commercial 
 Zoning District: General Commercial (CG) 
 Existing Land Use: Restaurant 
   South: Future Land Use Map Classification:  Commercial 
 Zoning District: General Commercial (CG) 

 Existing Land Use: 
Grocery Store 
Restaurant & Hookah Lounge 
Restaurant, Bank, Office Space 

   West: Future Land Use Map Classification: Commercial 
 Zoning District: General Commercial (CG) 
 Existing Land Use: Night Club 
 

Description of the Situation 

Verizon Wireless has an existing agreement with the Bayview Condominium 
Association whereby Verizon is permitted to maintain cellular communications 
equipment on the rooftop of the condominium structure. Verizon would like to lease an 
additional ground-level 10 foot by 16 foot area on the eastern side of the property within 
the side setback area. In that area, they would like to place a natural gas generator for 
the purpose of providing backup power to the cellular communications equipment in the 
event of a power outage. 
 
The generator will be anchored to a 4 foot by 10 foot concrete pad that will protrude 4 
inches above ground. The generator dimensions are 9’4” long, 3’5” wide, and 5’8” tall. 
The plans show that the newly leased area will be fenced in, with a fence of a height 
and type that will match the existing fencing on the property. Landscape hedging around 
the fence will match the existing hedge. Conduit will be installed to run from the 
generator to the roof top tower. 
 
The generator will be housed in a sound enclosure and the manufacturer specifications 
indicate that it operates at a noise level of approximately 71 decibels, measured at a 
distance of 23 ft. 
 
Section 152.0582 requires structural or landscape screening of mechanical equipment, 
specifically that screening be at least as high as the equipment. In the likely event that 
the proposed hedges are not tall enough to screen the entire height of the generator 
structure, we recommend a condition of approval requiring structural screening be 
utilized, in the form of lattice or some other decorative material. 

Page 525



This is a multifamily structure developed under the RM-70 district site development 
standards. Section 152.029(C) requires a 15 foot setback on one side and a setback of 
20% of the lot width on the other side. Additionally, the combination of both side 
setbacks must be at least 60 feet. According to the site plan approved for the original 
building construction, the total lot width is 275 feet. The distance from the building to the 
west property line is 55 feet, and the distance from the building to the eastern property 
line is 25 feet. Since the western 55 foot setback is clearly the setback that meets the 
20% of the lot width requirement, the eastern setback must only be at least 15 feet. The 
generator is proposed to be placed 8 feet 7 inches from the eastern property line. This 
is an encroachment of 6 feet 5 inches into the required 15 foot setback. 
 
North Bay Village Resolution 2000-08 recommended approval of the original site plan 
for construction of the multi-family structure at 1625 Kennedy Causeway, with the 
condition that confirmation of approval from the Miami-Dade Shoreline Review Board be 
provided prior to the issuance of a building permit. In order to verify that this project 
would not be in conflict with that shoreline approval, we spoke with Miami-Dade County 
zoning staff regarding this variance request. 
 
After their review of the proposed project plans and the original shoreline resolution for 
the structure at 1625 Kennedy Causeway (attached), the Miami-Dade Shoreline 
Coordinator responded with a letter (attached) indicating that the currently proposed 
project does not require shoreline review and is not in conflict with the original shoreline 
resolution. 
 
However, the original shoreline resolution did include conditions that the developer 
furnish a baywalk waterfront easement extending to the property lines as well as a 5 
foot wide access easement along the west property line in order to provide access to 
the rear baywalk. Records indicate that the access easement was recorded but was 
never actually provided on the property. At this time, the easement is overgrown with 
landscaping vegetation. Additionally, no records have been found which prove the 
existence of a dedicated and recorded baywalk waterfront easement. Staff is 
recommending the dedication and recording of a waterfront baywalk easement as a 
condition of approval of this variance. 
 
The applicant has not provided letters of consent from neighboring properties at the 
time of the writing of this staff report, but this probably is less important than other 
situations because the neighboring properties are commercial not residential.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 526



Required Findings 

 
 
Sec. 152.0971(B) sets forth findings that are required for the reviewing body(ies) to 
authorize any non-use variance request. In addition to staff comments on these items, 
the applicant’s comments (included in his letter) have been listed as well. For ease of 
review, each of the criteria contained in subparagraphs (B)(1) through (B)(3) have been 
separated into their component parts. 
 
 (1) The variance will be in harmony with the general appearance and character of 

the community. 
 

Applicant Comments: The applicant has taken care to ensure that the 
appearance of the proposed generator location will blend with the existing 
surrounding conditions on the subject property.  The generator unit will be 
surrounded by a decorative fence and trees and plant materials matching those 
in the immediate vicinity will be added project envelope to further buffer the unit 
from the view of adjacent properties.  It is a sensible location from the standpoint 
that existing utility infrastructure currently exists near the project area in the 
southeast corner of the property.  Additionally, the restaurant immediately to the 
east has constructed a short decorative screening-wall so as to provide a buffer 
between themselves and the Bayview Terrace property. In the opinion of the 
applicant, this wall, and the combination of the above mentioned improvements 
will effectively shield the generator unit from view from all angles. 
 
Staff Comments: The plans show that existing and proposed hedges will 
surround the proposed generator, with the exception of the necessary 
access gate. From the plans provided, it is not clear if the existing and 
proposed hedges will be tall enough to completely obscure the generator 
from view. However, there are already two existing mechanical items in 
close proximity to the proposed site, which are not obscured from view. It 
does not appear that installation of the generator, fence and hedges will 
further diminish the existing view corridor to the bay. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 527



(2) The variance will not be injurious to the area involved or otherwise detrimental to 
the public welfare. 

 
Applicant Comments: Emergency power generators have become a common 
sight on both residential and commercial properties in many parts of Florida.  In 
the case of the subject property, Verizon wishes to place a generator on the 
property to allow for continued operation of its existing cell site in the event of an 
extended outage of electricity.  Verizon considers the threat of seasonal weather 
to be serious when it comes to the need for its subscribers to make calls on their 
phones during an emergency.  With that in mind, Verizon has been placing 
backup generators at sites all across the south Florida region in order to ensure a 
working communications grid during times of extraordinary need.  In essence, 
this is a public-welfare response by Verizon.  A pro-active approach to providing 
necessary support during extended outages.  This plan is implemented in the 
good interests of the public. 
 
Staff Comments: Emergency backup for wireless network systems is a 
positive aspect for public welfare. 
 

(3) The improvement is designed and arranged on the site in a manner that 
minimizes aerial and visual impact on the adjacent residences. 
 
Applicant Comments: As stated in item #1 above, the proposed generator will 
be situated in an area that currently contains trees and decorative plant material.  
Additional trees and plant material, as well as a decorative fence, will be used to 
shield the generator unit from view.  These measures, along with the already 
existing decorative screening wall built by the restaurant to the east of the subject 
property will effective shield the generator unit from view. It is important to note 
that the condominium association of the subject property took action in support of 
this application.  Stakeholders were involved in the decision-making process that 
led to the siting of the unit in the easterly side-yard and its accompanying 
screening treatments.  Additionally, it is also important to note that the property to 
the east of the Bayview Terrace Condominium community is a restaurant and the 
use of the land immediately adjacent to the proposed generator location is a 
parking lot.  As such, there are no adjacent residences to be impacted by the 
placement of the generator.  This is also true to the south of the project as 
commercial office space and vehicular parking account for the land uses on the 
south side of the JFK Causeway. 
 
Staff Comments: This improvement should not have an aerial/visual impact 
on the adjacent residences. 
 

 
Staff finds that the requested variance does meet the requirements of Section 152.0971 
in that the materials submitted adequately allow for an affirmative finding on all of the 
criteria contained as specifically identified by the foregoing staff comments.  

Page 528



Recommendation: 

 

Staff recommends approval of the requested variance to allow a 8 foot 7 inch setback 
from the property line where a 15 foot setback is required, with the following 
stipulations: 
 

1. To comply with Section 151.25, screening must be provided which screens the 
entire height of the generator structure. 

2. Generator testing times shall be restricted to between 10am and 2pm on weekdays 
and non-holidays. 

3. Bayview Condominium Association must either verify that a baywalk public 
easement has been dedicated and recorded along the waterfront or must ensure 
that a baywalk public easement is dedicated and recorded along the waterfront 
according the Miami-Dade Biscayne Bay Management Plan. 

4. Building permits and related approvals for generator installation must be obtained 
from the Building Official prior to commencement of construction. 

5. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 
construction. 

6. Cost Recovery changes must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 
building permit shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost 
recovery deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including 
fees related to any previous development proposal applications on the property), 
have been paid in full. 

7. Authorization or issue of a variance or a building permit by the Village does not in 
any way create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or 
federal agency, and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance 
of a variance or a building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals 
or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action 
that result in a violation of federal or state law. 

Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
April 1, 2014 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, April 8, 2014  

Page 529



BAYVIEW CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION LETTER OF CONSENT 

  

Page 530



MIAMI-DADE COUNTY SHORELINE COORDINATOR LETTER 

  

Page 531



SHORELINE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE RESOLUTION 

 

Page 532



Page 533



 
  

Page 534



NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE SECTION 151.25 
 

 
  

Page 535



SITE PLAN 

 
 

 

Page 536



AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH OF SUBJECT SITE 

Page 537



CONDOMINIUM BUILDING 2001 SITE PLAN 

 

Page 538



VIEWS FROM KENNEDY CAUSEWAY 

Page 539



 

Page 540



SURVEY 

   

Page 541



 
GENERATOR SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

Page 542



Page 543



Page 544



Page 545



Page 546



Page 547



Page 548



Page 549



Page 550



Page 551



Page 552



Page 553



Page 554



Page 555



Page 556



Page 557



Page 558



Page 559



Page 560



Page 561



Page 562



Page 563



Page 564



Page 565



Page 566



Page 567



Page 568



Page 569



Page 570



Page 571



Page 572



Page 573



Page 574



Page 575



Page 576



Page 577



Page 578



Page 579



Page 580



Page 581



Page 582



Page 583



Page 584



Page 585



Page 586



Page 587



Page 588



Page 589



Page 590



Page 591



Page 592



Page 593



Page 594



Page 595



Page 596



Page 597



Page 598



Page 599



Page 600



Page 601



Page 602



Page 603



Page 604



Page 605


	2A2 - Proclamation to Communications Dispatch
	4A - Citizen's Budget & Oversight Board Meeting Minutes
	4B - Community Enhancement Board Workshop Minutes
	4C - Planning & Zoning Boad Meeting Minutes
	8 - Village Manager's Report
	10A - FOP Union Contract
	10B - Regional Radio System
	10C - Nayda Acros Budget Transfer
	10D - 7401 Beach View Drive - Rachel Dugger
	12A - PACE Program
	12B - Police Impact Fees
	13A - Ordinance Amending the General Election Qualifying
	13B - 1755 Kennedy Causway -  Staff Report & Resolution
	Resolution for Site Plan

	13C - Resolution for Side-Yard Setback at 1755 Kennedy Causeway
	13D - Resolution for Parking Spaces at 1755 Kennedy Causeay
	13E - Ordinance for Dwelling, Hotel Room Definitons
	13F - Change CG Zoning Designation to CL
	13G - 7914, 7916 and 7918 West Drive - Staff Report
	13H - 1357 Bay Terrace - Staff Report & Resolution
	Resolution for variance for Building Height

	13I - 1700 South Treasure Drive Staff Report & Resolution
	Resolution for a variance to permit pool equipment

	13J - 1700 South Treausre Drive - Resolution variance or steps
	13K - 7441 Center Bay - Staff Report & Resolution
	Resolution varience for a generator

	13L -7441 Center Bay - Resolution variance for carports
	13M - 1460 S Treasure Drive -Staff Report & Resolution 
	Resolution approving construction of a Dock

	14A -1625 Kennedy Causeway -  Staff Report & Resolution 
	Resolution for a variance for a gas generator

	15B - Appointment of members to the Business Development Advisory Committee
	16A - 03-11-2014 Regular Commission Meeting Minutes



